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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting for April 9 [sic}, 2008 is now in session.
At this time, the Chair would like to introduce the Members that are here
this morning. We do have Member Mateo, Baisa, Johnson, Medeiros, and
Molina. Good morning, Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excused this morning are Member Anderson, Hokama,
and Mr. Victorino. Supporting the Committee again are our Legislative
Analysts, Mike Geers, Gayle Revels, as well as, Lance Taguchi, and our
Committee Secretary, Yvette Bouthillier. Up front representing the

they're
Members request for their presence,
like to know now. Seeing none,
and, and if you do want at a later time if you could notify the Chair. The
Chair would appreciate that and then we'll notify the department. I want
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to thank the Director, Mr. Silva, and the Deputy for being here, and their
support person this morning. So, thank you very much. And we'll call
you when a request is made. Thank you.

it was one of
Safety
vv.uu,,,,,,",,, the department
as,
Pascua,
also
incoming Chief, Jeff Murray,
doing an
outstanding job. I, I think we learned a lot yesterday. Really, we did.
Members, we do have two people that's ... are signed up for public
testimony, but before we call on the people that signed up for public
testimony, I'd like to remind everyone in this chambers to, you know, put
their cell phone on the silent mode or if you could tum it off. Thank you.
For people that are providing public testimony, you have three minutes to
provide your testimony with one minute to conclude. You'll be warned
after three minutes has gone by, and if you can conclude in one minute,
the Committee would appreciate that. And when you come up and
provide your testimony if you can provide us your name and the
organization that you represent, the Committee would appreciate that. So,
the first person signed up for testimony is Nathan Kimura .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

was
thought
it was
to
'cause
was a Tech Park but getting, getting your foot the door is,
is a challenging part. And the MEDB helped, helped that with the job fair
and the internship. And that's all I have to say. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Molina?

Thank you.

Members, questions for the testifier?

Chair.
congratulations
your generation coming
your
background
do?
MR. KIMURA: I went to Baldwin High School and I graduated
Science. I went to Gonzaga University in Washington.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and, so, you've been back home now for
about a year now?
MR. KIMURA: For. .. 2004, so for four years.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Four years, good, good. Well, congratulations
and hope you stay here for the long-term and get the word out to the
people in your generation to come home and be a part of Maui County.
Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, more questions for the testifier?
I too would like to congratulate you and thank you for coming back by the
way to Maui and work. Every time we hear about people moving away.
It's so
to
somebody came back and working
a technology
next
IS

That summer, I decided I wanted to take on an internship at a technology
company partially to see what kind of work was available mostly to get a
decent job, a decent summer job. The problem was I really didn't know of
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any technology companies on Maui, much less the ones that offer
internships. I friend of mine had told me that Boeing usually had summer
internships, so I decided to start there. Unfortunately when I applied at
Boeing, they had already
internship positions.
told me
Research and Technology
I

there.

perfectly honest, I wasn't
the job
to
fetch coffee, file some paperwork, and receive a paycheck. Act.., the
actual experience, however, was nothing short of amazing. Instead of
serving coffee, I was working with laser radar systems. And instead of
filing documents, I was writing software. I was actually using the theories
and knowledge I gained in college for real world applications. And for the
first time in my life I understood why I was sitting in all of those
classrooms, reading all of those books, and taking all of those tests. When
the summer was over, I went back for my senior of college fired up and by
the time I graduated I had straight "A's".
I returned to Textron after I graduated and interned for another summer at
the end of which I was hired on full-time. Ten years later, I'm still
working for Textron Systems as a software engineer. In the years I've
been working here, I've seen Textron's internship program come and go.
In those years when we've had no interns it became difficult to find and
hire local talent. As you may be aware of, it is expensive and difficult to
qualified engineers
such, some nn."u""rI'"
went

PONTANILLA:
Members, any questions
the testifier?
Again, you know, from the Chair, thank you for coming back to Maui--
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MR. MATOI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and, and working here on this island. Maybe you can
word
is looking for
too.
want to come back
can come back and

MR. MATOI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is there anyone out there that hasn't signed up for
public testimony that want to testify? Sir, if you can testify and then sign
up with our Secretary as soon as you are complete with your testimony.
MR. LOUX: Good morning, Council Members. I'm James Loux and I'm really
here to testify about MEDB again as the previous testifiers. From the
standpoint of a small company in the research, and particularly the, the
renewable energy business, as you know we're trying to develop a
renewable energy business here. And MEDB has been a support to us
both in terms of connecting us with the DOE, DOE folks when they were
here, and also helping us promote what we're doing, and being a clearing
house liaison between us and other organizations.
So, we really
appreciated the support that we get from MEDB. And my own experience
MEDB has always been
to

LOUX: Bio Energy Systems of Hawaii. We're trying to develop a
process ... we go, use, utilize the waste wood, and generate the electricity
for Maui.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, that, that's good to hear. Thank you for
your testimony.

Again,
you
came back to Maui to

MR. LOUX: Okay, thank you. I needed to sign, right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, please. Members, this morning we do have the
Civil Defense Program to review and, and we do have Mr. Gen Iinuma,
the Civil Defense Coordinator, with us. If I can have Mr. Pablo provide
with some opening comments regarding Civil Defense.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair? Oh, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I'm sorry. I just have one point of clarification.
Will, will we close testimony?

we
Director Pablo, please.
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MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla, and good morning, Members. Right
before you, you should have a one page summary of the Civil Defense
Program. As with the other departments, I've tried to prepare an executive
trying to get
the pertinent information on one page to guide
the discussions. As
the
like some
departments
budget
year.
actually have a decrease
of a
2.3 percent.
versus 2008, a
you see
is for salaries
wages are
Collective Bargaining agreement for eight employees.

u"' ..'u ..... ,,'"

a

Operations have gone down by about $14,000. The major changes are
summarized in the middle of the page. This department is not requesting
any expansion positions this year and no equipment either. Administrator
Gen Iinuma is here to answer any that you may have regarding this Fiscal
Year 2009 proposal. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Pablo. Members, on Page 2 of your
proposed bill, and also Pages 3-1 to 3-6 on your Program Budget, and
Pages 1-10 to 1-, I'm sorry, 1-1 to 1-10 on the Budget Details. At this
time, the Chair would like to recognize Mr. Iinuma for comments.
MR. IINUMA: Thank you very much, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the
Council. My name is Gen Iinuma and I serve as the Administrator for the
Maui County Civil Defense Agency over this past year and for the last
pleasure and honor of serving
years of which I've had

addition to our Emergency Management and Response Service
Delivery colleagues, such as Police, the Fire Department, Emergency
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Medical Services, Department of Health, American Red Cross, and others,
we continue to nurture of our relationships with entities that will be called
upon to assist us during times of. .. that may be an event of catastrophic or
disaster
we not
have ongoing dialogue
we

comes over every
Support Team.
our weapons of mass destruction
as they're called corne and we coordinate with them our Fire, Police, and
others to put on an annual exercises to look at our skills and to increase
our compatibility. We have also partnered with many community
agencies, especially our local Fire Department to have a program within
the community called CERT, Community Emergency Response Teams,
and our agency has been trying to develop a cadre of residents within the
communities, the various communities, to be able to have some selfsustainment and, and, you know, self-reliance should a disaster occur.
We also have been partnering with other entities like the National Weather
Service. Every year we work with them to put on a wet season briefing so
that they corne over and give us some forecast, limited forecast, of what
they envision our year would be in terms of hurricane activity and such.
We work with our State Civil Defense partners to participate in a
Statewide tsunami exercise. Then getting back to the, to the hurricane
situation, this corning May 31 st, we'll continue with a hurricane expo. The
players there again are, are our
Cross,

our, our streams
oceans
on our
and whatever we can do to mitigate situations to impact these
areas we, we'd like to participate in.
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Economic vitality is, is certainly an area that our services are, while not in
the forefront, we feel that if our visitors, which Maui County has certainly
the economic dependence on, on our visitor industry. If we are able to
provide a safe
our visitors we
destination
safety,
course, especially
we've worked on
we "v.nu ....,",
to provide a safe
way we feel
County
property.
As such, we also have been looking at one goal, which is the Maui
County's, increasing Maui County's residents and visitors understanding
and awareness about disaster preparedness. And I'm sure you're, you're
certainly aware and, and have an understanding of how other communities
have been facing those issues, especially in lieu of the events that took
place in ... with Katrina and the Indonesian tsunami. With that our, our
services are really dependent upon a lot of collaboration and, and
cooperation with folks that we work with in Emergency Management and
Service Delivery ... Emergency Management and Response Service
Delivery for our community, residents, and, and visitors.
The kind of issues that face our department are one .. .I think the primary
one is getting a better, getting folks out there to really understand what
Civil Defense does or does not do. Often times we are called upon to help
community
when events such as

servIces,
say one
having our
complement of personnel to come aboard. We've not been
successful in filling our vacancies and part of that is just due to .. .I will
take responsibility for just my ignorance in, in how operations ought to
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occur and how to get some of the positions on board, that coupled with our
very low employment situation in the, in the County, I believe contribute
to some of the vacancies we've had. We're hoping to fill those vacancies
as quickly as we can.
been
a
that it
it especially
us as our professional staff
""..,_u,,~u to

was my anniversary
certainly
a learning experience
for me. I believe that emergency management of which Civil Defense is a
part of has been thrust into the forefront often times, especially with the
kind of major events that have come about, and we've been called upon to
do a host of activities that for the most part, I believe, has really
developed, like the most recent one several days ago, well right now we're
experiencing vog coming from the Big Island. And so, we get engaged
with that to work with our partners at Department of Health to look at
what kind of preparedness can we do to support our community's efforts
to deal with the vog issue and residents and visitors with respiratory
conditions, how can we make their lives a little more comfortable and
such.
u.vu.u

A recent situation that came up with a hostage situation we worked very
closely with our partners at the Police Department, and American Red
Cross, and the Parks Department in getting, coordinating our services so
that we could take care of the residents within that complex that was
affected.

So, basically, you know, I'd like to come before you, you see our budget is
pretty flat. It, it hasn't changed. We have some programs that we
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certainly want to continue with. Our basic approach is going to be very
simple.

at
we
have a long way to go
terms
shelters
our
current shelter situation being about an estimate of between 27 and 35,000
shelter spaces for our population that ranges some where close to about
150,000 people in the de facto area.
And one of that major areas that we've been focusing on is
communications. We feel that without proper communications, especially
among our first responders and emergency providers, the kind of services
that we can provide are going to be not as substantial as we like it. And
being that communications is a primary responsibility or the coordination
of communications is a primary responsibility of the, the Civil Defense
agency, we have focused a lot of attention and resources in that area.
To that end, the Council has ... very generous in, in providing us with
assistance over the last several budgets. One line item budget was in, in
regards to a HAM radio equipment. We have leverage, I would sayan
estimate of about $100,000 from Homeland Security to really beef up that
area. It's not the
We feel that
going to
putting
,",p\!l-"r",

come
area
grants. So, we
are ... well not lapsing will certainly be decreasing over the next several
years and we hope to build upon what we've had right now to continue to
develop our communication systems within the County.
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I'd like to at this time really acknowledge our Police Department of the
radio communications ... radio shop, their manager, Walt Pacheco, and
Captain Jeffrey
who's assigned to
those
.. , programs and projects through.
a remarkable job
I feel
our, our '"'v .......... H"' ..... V.. """"P7Tl
responders
County is second to none
open
PONTANILLA:
you, Gen,
tape, start 1B). .. Any questions in regards to the Civil
budget at this time? Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. !inuma,
good morning.
MR. IINUMA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you for, thank you for your presentation
this morning. I'm really glad you, you recognize the positions that are
currently vacant. You went through a litany of the involvement and the
requirements that Civil Defense goes through and the many partners that,
that you work with. So, you, you know, I, I guess the, the recognition of
these vacant positions that's been vacant since 2007. You reference the
urgency now in trying to fill those positions and I hope you do because the
listing that we got from Personnel speaks contrary to your insistence that
you hurry and
these things because
no action
So,

we at
same
to leverage some
Security
to provide grant
personnel. So, what we're hoping to do again is to get a mixture of both
either contractually to leverage again that Homeland Security monies to
bring on some contract services to provide some services to those areas.
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The difficulty is that with the flat line budget that the, the overall County
has .. .is faced with, we're not going to be as successful I don't believe in,
in getting full-time positions. We, we retracted that. I think if I can speak
to that, our hope was to increase but we, we pulled
section out. So,
we're
now
at
it
dollars.

MR. IINUMA: Well, you know, on, on contract services what we're hoping to do
for us again is to really look at the four areas that I, I discussed earlieralert notification, shelter, evacuation, and communications. And if we
can, if we can bring about activities from either on-island or off-island just
to get those services done, it's, I think, much more than what's happening
right now. So, if, if you looking at, at hiring on-island folks, if they have
the qualifications certainly we, we'd like to be able to that and work with
the community. Right now, we do have volunteers serving in some
capacity there.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, okay. Well obviously the concern ... my
concern would be hiring off-island people coming to our communities.
Obviously that is of concern because of familiar, familiarity with the area
and the community and the facilities available there.
I'd also like to look at one of your Performance Measures in the program,
3-4. One of the bullet point. .. one, two, three,
bullet point,
test

IINUMA: Yeah, thank you, Councilmember Mateo, for that. The ... as you,
as you and the other Council Members certainly are aware of the Warning
Siren System is, is a State, the State's kuleana. And while we have stated
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our concerns and the needs to the State, their, their budget process and,
and the way in which they, they prioritize areas are certainly subject to,
you know, our input. We have been looking at other mechanisms in
regards to warning, warning
systems.
I
current
Warning Siren System,
is based on, you
are
to
upgraded.
terms
with
today, almost everyone carries a
"'v.UU ...."CA"'~.U'V'u device. And
I may,
we can
a different system
be
the
they were
trying to
their,
people know.
over
days of
fire raging what they, what they used was a system that some people
phrase or call reverse 911 In our, in the, in this current budget, we're
looking at exploring that kind of mechanism so that while the Warning
Siren System will be in place, we will have our own County mechanism to
alert our visitors and residents. And I think, we need to move into a
different arena and to utilize a kind of upcoming and, and new technology
to help us with this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Iinuma, pardon for my interruption, but the
question that Mr. Mateo had asked you in regards to this two civil sirens
that are, I, I guess, fallen. What is our process in trying to get the State to
replace those sirens? Do we send them a letter or some kind of
communication? Do we get a response from them? You know, as part of
your responsibility, I think, that would be something that you need to do
and, and get response from the State. In, in regards to something that is
new, I, I think that can be taken up in a different venue.

COUNCILMEMBER

Just to comment on that.

PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And there is no value to life. I mean seventy
something thousand for a siren. How do you value the life? So, we have
to qualify your statement. And,
I
to ask one more,
one more

grant
yeah? So, after the
disappears, so does
not County employees. They're hired under. .. with the use of grant funds.
So, we don't have to worry about these positions?
MR. IINUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
MR.IINUMA: Excuse me. I think that's, that two, two, it says, yeah, it's two not
four.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: You, you know, if you take a look, if you take a
look at your, in your details.
MR.IINUMA: Yeah, I, I see that under F, FY '09 request but ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, what's correct?
It

years
job on.
sure that you're much more comfortable
it now.
noticed that the last time we .. .if I recall correctly that you were here, we
were concerned about shelters and not having enough for them or not
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having them equipped sufficiently or not even having them listed where
people would know where to go. Can you give us a little progress report?
IINUMA: Thank you

on
per

while we have a
base 150, 160
County. As I said earlier, we had between, and depending on
do you, what equation you use in terms of how much, what space is given
to an individual between on the low end 27,000 plus spaces to on the high
end, 35,000 spaces. To that end, I, what, what I'd like to see is other
avenues to assist us in getting more shelter space. One, one area is to
work with private sector and to use the section, the Hawaii Revised
Statute, Chapter 128-19 to increase private sector participation to allow
folks to open up their facilities to have ... to use as emergency shelters, and
if they do so, without any remuneration or, or that they be held harmless.
So, that's one avenue in addressing that situation.

The other would be to look at how do we structure our policies or our
procedures within the County to encourage folks to build safe rooms and
such. So, we're, we're, we're working on those areas right now.
We ... there's a State hazard mitigation grant, planning grant that's
available, and we're looking also at how to leverage some of those
funding to see if we can retrofit some of our facilities within the County.
State has provided some
area for retrofitting to
are

a
reality is that the policy is that when you, when you go to a
shelter, residents, or visitors, whoever goes to the shelter, they ought to be
bringing their own supplies.
shelter is just the space and that's the
IS

- 17 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 10, 2008

challenge we have because if we go and, and it's going to be our policy to
provide cots and blankets and pillows and, and everything there's no place
to store it for one. I mean, it's very, very difficult to have an that
Logistically, it becomes a challenge
recurring cost of having to
as wen as food, supplies,
meets the eye. The ongoing logistics
able to
of

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So, you would need then to have a back up plan if
that is the policy because in a case like that flood that occurred Upcountry
where, you know, the house was swept away and it took seconds and the
people were gone. They don't have time to get blankets and food and
whatever. So, do you have another agency? Is that the Red Cross that
then comes, enters the picture?
MR.IINUMA: Very much so. That's the purview of the Red Cross and we try to
support them. And as you know, our community is extremely generous.
People come forward all the time and, and the gen ... , generosity of our
community is extraordinary. That is the purview ... that's not a purview of
Civil Defense although we try to, we try to leverage whatever resources
we can as such with the FEMA containers, which has a cash of blankets
and cots and such like that there.

see

as an

our

MR.IINUMA: Certainly, especially we call upon, you know, those, those entities
to help us communicate to the visitor community. They do it so much
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better through their resources and such and they help us out a lot, you
know, what we do is we forward information to them about situations and
they, they coordinate very well. So, I, I count them as, you know, a very
partner.

'cause,
Hotel Association,

MR. IINUMA: Yes, absolutely. And again, I can't thank them enough, enough,
especially the Maui Visitor's Bureau. Whenever we have issues that
affect the transportation area, airports and such, they, they're quick to
corne to our aid in that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. !inuma, with regard to the HAM
radio equipment and the proviso that I placed in last year's budget for the
HAM radio equipment because we had no equipment and no
communications, the 911 system, as well as even communication to the
Police Department did not function properly. It was given to us as
testimony, I believe, in the Lahaina area, that, I believe, it was Mr. Weber,
because he was unable to get additional equipment, you know, for the
West side that
to take it upon himself to go
get somebody to
So,

me,
budget
we
was
radio equipment and the specificity on who to work with and such was not
available to me. And I, I, I've got to plead ignorance on that. My
understanding of, of the HAM radio system is that you need a certain level
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of certification for one to use it. The other is that I'm not aware of, of any
mechanism to provide equipment, County equipment, such as this to
private citizenry. We, we do it in, in a way with our support of the radio
as the
amateur
emergency support system as
We support their
by having
such
they support us when
HAM radio
it's
not to let out equipment to private individuals. The
system is really based on
user
a cornmum
device that goes through a network, and without that network of repeaters
and controllers and antennas and such, the system doesn't function as
adequately as it could. And so, our efforts has really been to look at the,
the system in it's totality.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, this wasn't for private purchase.
Mr. Weber has his own HAM radio equipment. But what happened was
because the ambulances, the Police Department, when they do not have
that equipment at their disposal, and we were hoping to locate it
somewhere in and around the vicinity of the Civic Center. That was an
impossible thing for a HAM radio operator to communicate with the
police or with emergency personnel to actually direct people, you know,
who were in need of assistance. So, what happened during the, I believe,
it was the fire and there was at least one other time when this equipment
went down. This is not the first time that's happened and I did bring this
to your attention during a previous meeting. So, it's on the record that,
you know, that this is not something new but what ended up happening is
our communications
West Maui was totally nonexistent. So, people
not

stretching it because it
is a
matter in terms of technology and, and how you go about and utilize that.
The HAM radio system from my perspective has been very well
supported. And so, if the individual has his own equipment then that's

vV>UOJ<V",
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one aspect of it. If we were talking about interfacing with police and
emergency providers that's on a separate system. And our, our separate,
our system has not been compromised
that way in terms of for
responders to be able to speak
each
We
are
working on
interface between
emergency medical services system,
EMS system, because they're on a
on a different
technology.
speak
losing
such it even more empnasl:z:es
area on 911
we're trying to
because what ..
systems went down it was because, I believe, that physical lines were
destroyed. And they are, in the case of
Maalaea fire, two of
transmission lines went down.
What, what we want to do is be able to hook up or be able to provide the,
the back, backbone system to allow HAM radio operators to communicate
better.
And, I believe, that, that's been accomplished and being
accomplished. One with the repeater that we put up in, in the, or help
assist to put up in the Whaler's Village, and one that's presently in the
process of being put up in the Ritz Carlton. But again, you know, if, if the
individual, and I, I've not spoken with Mr. Weber, or whoever is not
communicated with us how we can interface. We certainly would be very
willing and, and open to work with this individual to help us with
communications.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and he's attempted to do that on several
occasions and then was told that the repeaters were purchased as opposed
to
was trying to assist at least advocating
not.

course, a
placed
or, you
some place
people
can get communication going when there are victims involved and they
need to be transported. That is something that is really important to me
and that's why if there was any difficulty in placing that money or in how

- 21 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 10, 2008

the proviso was stated, I would've appreciated that kind of input at the
time when it was placed. But, I'll move off that subject.

is
was no
Weber's to get
Nobody seemed to
key, what was going on.
Department finally did, you know, get in touch with me and we were able
to get the trailer opened so that we could assist people in opening up
emergency shelter for West Maui, which is at the Civic Center. But what I
would like to know is that in your description to other members of
placement of FEMA trailers or retrofitting shelters, I heard no mention of
the past project, which was the retrofitting of Lahaina Civic Center as an
emergency shelter. So, is that dead?
MR. IINUMA: I, I got in communication with the, you know, the Parks and
Recreation to look at that, and I believe they had contract with someone to
review that situation, and I believe it's a work in progress at this, at this
time. The issue of retrofitting the Lahaina Civic Center was problematic
because of the numbers of ... well there's the glass, and the location. It
was very close to an inundation zone. It is very close to critical services,
such as fire and police, and the EMS, and as a result issues related to
traffic not being ... all of these things are, are being considered. And I, I
believe that they are going to be moving forward with the, at least, partial

we
... (end of tape, start
State stored in,
2A). . . because of the condition of articles that
places like that and so, you know, how the bugs and everything get in
So, that's, that's a consideration. The FEMA trailers are, are hopefully
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going to come within, you know, by the end of this year. We still need to
go and, and put up fencing and, and different things for its security. So,
we're optimistic that we can have additional resources for West, West

to

to

a set

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, 'cause, you know, with the issues that
you mentioned about the proximity to, you know, first responders and, you
know, traffic issues or proximity to the inundation zone for tsunami.
Where the trailers are located right now is right next to the Civic Center,
so, if it's not suitable, I, I just, you know, where would you be locating or
relocating the FEMA trailers?
MR.IINUMA: Well, you know, the area right now, we, we, we had often, well,
we were thinking about putting it in an area behind on the upper parking
lot area, which is on a higher elevation for one and better excess ... access
to the back and would not impede traffic and, and response services. And
that's, that's one area we looked at. We were looking at an area that
would be secure certainly so that, you know, we can minimize intrusion.
The difficulty in, in locating these trailers is that their size and, and
certainly I don't think some business would like to have it in their parking
not
attractive,

rormclIloln as to
is going on
regard to West
Maui, and I don't know if Ms. Feenstra who's been assigned from the
Mayor's office is available, but if she would have that information, I think,
that the community as well as myself would really like to improve our
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communications and know what's going on so that, you know, when
storm events happen, when any kind of emergency exists that we don't
as though we're left on our own. Thanks.
sort of
IINUMA: Thank

to

to

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
you. Members, after listening to all of
questions that is being brought forward to the Civil Defense, and I think
we need to do a quarterly review with the Committee that is responsible
for the Civil Defense. That way, at least, you know, we can get more
information. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I'll yield my turn
this time. I need to talk to my staff and then I'll -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --then you come back to me later. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you,
Member Medeiros. Mr. Iinuma, my, my focus would be just on radio
I know, it was a

So, some
computers, putting on the
TV is useless.

- 24-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 10, 2008

So, one of the basic elements of communication is radio and I have to
admit listening to radio it didn't seem like they were getting out the
message as often as in years past. And, I know, you're looking at a budget
you're,
and possibility being
And one of
Performance Measures is looking
1 guess, on Page
Budget, is research at least two
emergencies/disaster
systems by
So, my question to you would
are you going to achieve
measure and, you know,
getting
message out to
stations so that they can get
message out to the public on a more
we say, more timely basis, rather than, you know, maybe getting one Civil
Defense message out on the hour or every two hours because I found that
was really lacking? And, I know, I know, and I know some of it is not,
you know, is beyond your control. But, I, I think the radio stations need
to, you know, get out there more often to the public 'cause the public was
waiting a lot of times and not knowing what the heck was going on, and a
lot of it was just first hand, you know, they call their neighbor, did you
hear anything and so forth. So, in my opinion, I think, we were lacking in
that area and it's not, of course, all your fault. But it's, you know, I think,
we need to get down and sit down with these ... the radio stations to get the
word out to the public on a more timely basis.
So, I'd just like to get your comments on that on where we can improve
and at the very least let the public know which is our Civil Defense radio
or, or radio stations in which they can get Civil Defense information on
because when I was on the mainland I took a tour out to Hoover Dam
Nevada and they tell you. They have signage there,
to this

areas
you want messages to go out to, and you give
a text message
or voice message and so forth and, and individuals then can get, get an
understanding of what's going on in the area. The system that we're
looking at will give a subscriber different, different tiers of messages.
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They can get either by cell phone, by, by your, your particular personal
computer device, or even your horne phone and such. You get can get it
all the messages at one time or by tiers, whichever you choose first. And
so, so we give out a message through
then we give out
messages
so

at
own emergency
a
a
system
would broadcast emergency messages out on a
given frequency. They're working on it right now.
The third option is what you were stating earlier was just to work with
what we call our local provider, LP 1's. Our, our provider has been the
Pacific Radio Group and we work with these individuals at this particular
station because of their back up generator power and all that. They're able
to get it out.
The responsibility of, of it is twofold. One is that we need to get
information from, from Civil Defense to the, the media, in this case, the
radio stations, to get out the kind of messages on an ongoing basis. And
in, in that respect, we certainly need to increase our, our capacity there to
be able to provide them with timely information, timely and ongoing
information. And we, we struggle with some of this because as
information is corning in rapidly, you know, things change, information
changes, and, and we also have to look at the accuracy of the information.
We don't want to give out information that's not accurate. It may just
HHC"...,,-,"" people or
add to
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MR. IINUMA: You know, it's one of them and, and we hesitate to have one
because people might dial in there and then, you know, we, we have other
messages going out through other, other radio sources in the Pacific Radio
at
to

so
no
we say this is
no .. .it's automated service they may
and get elevator music
and that wouldn't good. So, you know, that's, that's one of our problems
we, we face with that. For the Hana area, the East Maui area, I believe,
they get stations from Kona and the Hilo side, and it's also Pacific Radio
Group. And so, they, you know, we get back stop by them as, as like the
Big Island on that north face side, north Kona area, they utilize stations
that come off of Haleakala. So, they get our Maui stations too. So, we,
we work in concert with Big Island on some of these.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And I know the radio stations you
always ... even though there may not be a person physically in the building,
they gotta have somebody on call in the event of an emergency. So, even
though they have this automated programming, and stations are doing that
more often to cut costs 'cause, you know, you have a live body in there
2417, it costs them money and it's unfortunate 'cause I'm, I'm very bias
towards having that live person in there, whether it be for music or, or for
Civil Defense emergencies.

of emergency
when everything else goes out. So, I just wanted to pass that on to you.
And I want to thank you for your comments and please keep up the work,
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especially in this area as it relates to radio communication for the general
public. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.

colleague, Member Molina,
Director HAL""'''''',
meeting that indeed
warnings do come
Big Island radio
station and we on .. .in the East Maui appreciate that coordination with Big
Island. I'm trying, in, in the ... your objectives for Fiscal Year 2009 and
Budget Proposal on Page 3-3. You cite the Maui's Tactical Interoperable
Communications Plan and I'm assuming that's to connect interagency's
communications.
MR.IINUMA: Yeah, you know, this particular project is not only Maui but it's a
State requirement. Recipients of Homeland Security resources funding
have to develop a plan, and not only develop the plan, but they have to
validate it and that's through an exercise. And primarily, it is the speaking
of, mutual aid partners speaking with each other here on Maui, but we're
also trying to develop a mechanism so that when off-island response folks
come to assist us, such as State Civil Defense, the National Guard, and
others, FEMA, and such, and they're able to plug into our system so that
there'S, there's no delay in how we provide services.

IINUMA: At, at, at one ... what we're trying to develop is a mechanism to be
mobile in the event that we're not able to utilize our current emergency,
emergency operating center and the administrative offices to be able to
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have a prepackage system that will allow us to function outside of this
building.
MEDEIROS: Okay.

so

COUNCILMEMBER
Okay.
I want to
Member Mateo was asking about on
warning sirens system test that
you folks do. In, also in the Performance Measures, which was the fourth
bullet down and the fifth bullet because it says to, you know, operate and
test warning siren system in the fourth one, and also the Hawaii Warning
System in the fifth one. Is that one in the same system?
MR. IINUMA: The Hawaii warning system is our communication system -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MR. IINUMA: --and that gives us a hardwire to the other emergency
management operation centers, State warning point, and such.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for that. And kind of
related to that then is in rural areas, like East Maui, going all the way from
Huelo all the way through Hana and up to La Peruse, there are very few or
not none sirens
wondering what is your,

as
arise,
coastal areas to
a
be also activating, potentially activating our Air One through Fire, and
potentially bringing on contract services that we, that we utilize to fight
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fires and such, but you utilize those services to get to those remote areas
and to warn our, our residents and visitors.
so,
areas?
so.
I agree
One that's contracted by the County, you know, I did
opportunities when I was charge of Public Works Highways to ride
them to warn the coastal areas during tsunami warning. So, that's a big
help because the difference between a helicopter and a fix swing, like
Civil Air Patrol, is that if the helicopter sees fisherman and lot of them are
in shelters along the coast area, they can, you know, hover and then give
the warning whereas the plane just, you know, goes by. So, I think,
utilizing the helicopter is really important for rural coastal areas.
I wanted to ask you on the shelters for Hana, especially now where the
road is closed and isolates Kipahulu and Kaupo, if Kaupo residents needed
to go to a shelter, where would be the closest shelter they would go to?
MR. IINUMA: My understanding is they would have to come around and, and go
back side and, and go to Keokea area.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay, that would be closest, right?

MR.IINUMA: --Member Medeiros, on, on that note, what one of the things that
we really want to encourage is to look at the ... that area and, and to try to
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assist our residents into building safe rooms within their own facilities so
they can hunker down. I think that's something that we want to stress
even more these days because of the, the lack of shelter space is to really
at within
own properties
can
own settings,

MR. IINUMA: We, we certainly, you know, make that plea
rely and self-sufficiency, and self-sustainability
important.

1S,

that selfI think, really

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I wanted to ask you when you guys
do the monthly siren system test, are there anyone monitoring that to, to
report back to the agency, your agency, or the State Civil Defense, if
sirens are not working, are not covering certain areas? Do you get a report
back and who does that monitoring?
MR. IINUMA: Well, how we, how we do it is in a monthly testing of the system,
we, we, of course, activate the system, and then we have a check list of all
the different siren areas, and we call a list of residents within those, those,
you know, near a siren, and just say and ask them, you know, whether or
not the siren sounded or not. That's one mechanism. At, at times when
we really are, are trying to get a very definitive report on it, we may
position people,
as, and,
real difficult because of

area
specifications
or not
true to
are.
some situations, we may have to go out there then and put
another siren, especially
the areas that have experienced development,
more residents, and such.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Okay, and thank you for, for that
infonnation. I know in rural areas where sometimes electricity is not
available
operate
those

following up on
Mateo was
about and it's my concern too is that if, and I try to report sirens in
that weren't working or didn't have the radius coverage. And, and it was a
difficult process to do and I wrote to Civil Defense Statewide because I
know they're responsible for that. So, is it that State Civil Defense is
responsible for those systems? So, they, do they also send a maintenance
and repair personnel from Honolulu to do the work on our sirens in Maui
County?
MR. IINUMA: It's done twofold. They have a, a cadre of repair and technicians
that come out on a scheduled basis, sometimes it's quarterly, sometimes it
monthly, depending on the kinds of work being done. We also contract
for services out with local vendors to take care of issues that can be
perfonned locally. And, and, you know, back to your comment about the
cloud cover and power to the sirens. It's done in two ways. They have a
hard line electrical circuit that runs through nonnal power system, but
there's a back up solar with it.

as, as explained
it's a State system.
and
you know, just, just by logistics not having the kind of full,
range of
personnel to be able to dedicate one for that particular one is challenging
right now.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Director Iinuma, for your
information and answers. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.

other thing that I want to mention is that when the
was here in regards to their 800 megahertz system and, and the tie in
between Fire, Police, Civil Defense, I don't know if there is tie in with the
State. Maybe Mr. Iinuma could provide us a mapping of all of the
communication systems that we have and how they intertwine between all
of the various departments, as well as the State of Hawaii. That would be
appreciable.
The other thing that I would like to ask the Administration regarding this
performance measurements. You know, we get a lot of questions coming
out in, in regards to performance measurements. Whose responsibility is
it to make sure that each department meets its goals and objectives? Do
you do a quarterly review, a semi-annually review, and, and what is the
action plans to ensure that these goals and objections, objectives are met?
So, I leave that with the Administration, especially to Mr. Pablo, because
when we deal with money, you know, you got to take a look at the goals
and objectives ensuring that
we spent or
know,
meet

is
at
opening day of
budget, I think I, all of you got a copy
the mission
that, that this Administration has set. And we've also set the goals, which,
which would support that mission. That starts from the top and as we
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work down, we'll be revIsmg quite a bit of these objectives and
performances would tie in with the mission and goals, which were, which
were set by this Administration. We're, we're trying to do this, of course,
we've been on, we've
an administration a year now.
the rlp,,,,,,,-r1-rnpr\"t,,,
going to take us a
to go
met
budget session this year. We're
possibly next

PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that information.
glad
the Administration is moving in that direction to ensure that, you know,
whatever goals and objectives that you folks set that the monies that we
put aside for those objectives are, are being met on, on a timely basis. So,
with that, Members, the Chair is going to call a mid-morning break and
then we'll go directly into CIP. We'll return to this chambers at about
10:55 a.m. This meeting in recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:38 a.m.
10:56 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. ,(gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee is
reconvened. . .. (end of tape, start 2B). .. Members, what we're going to
take up at this time is the Capital Improvement Proposal by the
department. If you can tum to Page 31-28 and the first project that is
before us is the Alert and Notification System. And then, the second one
is Communication Network,
is 31-30.
I, I

an r.n1nrH71
system together,
San Diego system,
the County of Honolulu have secured a partial project to test drive the
system. And I've asked the ... our counterparts in, in, in Honolulu, City
and County, to allow us to participate in that program and that in, in
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reviewing and evaluating it, and that's occurring, that's going to begin
within the next several months, and hopefully get a better idea by the end
of this year. So, again, we're looking at the initial phase to an estimated
$10,000 to evaluate
system
to
at
be a
the $100,000 ,","<1.H"".'"
I
I,
I
figures
ago, it came
165,000
Maui's
of
at providing
service to the
just over a
fees
Honolulu City and County and Maui County's portion would be about
165,000. So, we're still exploring that. But again, the, this, this, this fiscal
year, we're looking at just the research and design of that.
VVAHA"' ....

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members questions? Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Iinuma, as, as you
just said the primary focus is to get these funds to evaluate the system
that's being considered. For the life of me, I just don't understand why
this exist under a CIP request and not a contractual service type of
expenditure because I, I don't even know, Chairman, if this could qualify
for a CIP. So, I don't know if we're premature in addressing it versus
connecting this to a contractual service, which is just an evaluation of a
system. So, personally, I don't think this is a CIP request. So, I can tell
you right now, I will not support this as a CIP request because I think it
belongs in a contractual arrangement. Thank you, Chair.
can

PONTANILLA: Thank

some

Member Mateo?
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. So, Mr. Iinuma, then if you taking a look
at the same project, you look, if you look at construction, you're showing
$90,000 in the next fiscal year. But $90,000 to construct what?

equipments.
purchase of just software to
our
system. So, I, I
the. ..
ignorant about what the actual is, is going to be. But
it
falls between actual hardware and software and the technology is to allow
us to make the system work.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. I still share my same, my same concerns,
Chairman. I thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No questions, except that I'm excited that we're
looking at this kind of technology. The text messaging is a big deal today
in notifYing people of emergencies. So, I'm very happy to see us going in
this direction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.

now
servers for
that's going be a challenge to coordinate with that many cell phone
companies and servers as far as coordinating that. But that is the means of
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communication now days. So, I just want to make comments on that.
Thank you. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.

I would support Mr. Mateo's
this. I think
with the, I think,
program can look at the two-and-a-half million
dollars of Federal funds on Operations for Homeland, with their
Homeland Security grant, and those two employees to go out and do a
contractual professional service scoping prior to having us entertain a CIP
consideration. Chairman, as well as, just as a quick seque into the next
project, Mr. Chairman, if we're going to look at notification and the next
part is the Communications Network consideration then why wouldn't this
be all in one comprehensive approach. If you're going to do radio, why
wouldn't we look at the other communication options under a
communications network. So, that would be my approach and, and, what I
could support financially, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that comment and that's the
reason why my comments before the recess was to try and see, you know,
because we have so many communication systems for this County, you
know, what can best be served to meet all of the communication needs for
you. So,
regards to

some
also regards to "V'HHH-UJ""'~'H'-"H
on board. Members, we go to the next one, 31-30. Mr. Iinuma?
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MR. IINUMA: Thank you, Chair. The appropriation we're seeking in the FY
2009 is, it mirrors what we asked for and was approved last year. We
partner very much, as I said earlier, with the Police Department to take on
particular kinds
initiatives
And
depart ... ,
County, our, our
issues related to the
maintenance
so
County is
a Countywide
serves not only
Fire,
Defense, and,
also
others
include Department of Water, our Aquatic Safety,
Works, and, and so forth. And so, it comes under
Civil Defense
Agency because of our primary responsibility of coordinating this
particular area.
The $300,000 that was used in last year was to look at again the
Microwave System and to plan for the future. As you may be aware of
from our colleagues in the Police Department, the system has aged to a
point where replacement parts are, are being extremely difficult to find
and such. And the planning process really uncovered a whole lot of things
in there that we need to continue to look at. In addition to the system at
that time that they were examining, we've had an opportunity to secure a
very prime location in the Ulupalakua area that would allow us to get
another microwave link for us that gives us a really good look at the South
Maui area. And in fact that particular position provides us with, that site,
provides us with a look at some dead spots that we have right around the
Maalaea area, as well as into Lahaina. And this $300,000 is really looking
at continuing our research, design,
of

is

1S

MR. IINUMA: Again, you know, as we looked at the overall design and of, of
the Communication System, as we ... as I dialogue with Police and Fire and
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others they felt that because of, it didn't just, the Communication System
didn't just affect Police Department but these other entities that we
coordinate with that they felt that it was appropriate to stay within our
I,

CHAIR
So,
requirement for the property
they're looking
at, at Ulupalakua that's going to be the responsibility for the Civil Defense
to go out and lease?
MR. IINUMA: No, actually, you know, the ... that area as well as all the other
sites and such are all managed by the Police Department. We're looking
again, our role is to look at just the coordination of, of the system, and to
allow feedback from the other partners to come through us. We all, we
just work in collaboration with it all. I'm, I depend heavily upon the
technical expertise of the Police Department to carry forth this project.
And so, it resides with us primarily from the planning perspective.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, each of the different disciplines do have monies in
there to support the system?
MR.IINUMA: I'm sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, Chairman, thank you. Mr. Iinuma,
a little, I'm a little confused with the information that was just shared.
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The site that you're already negotiating on is in the Ulupalakua area. And,
and, what you're talking about with the requested funds is for a
communication system only?
IINUMA:

H,......'HiV '-'.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
then --

Okay.

The Ulupalakua piece of the puzzle

MR. IINUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --that's all going to be part of the Emergency
Operating, Operation Center down the road. Is, is that the plan?
MR. IINUMA: Communication wise, it'll, it'll certainly be a part of that, the
communications network. But it is a communication site. It's like the
various sites we have throughout the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, you know, Chairman, I know I'm, I'm
looking at the other project. Then, then the Emergency Operation Center
is a different complex from the community network that we're talking
now. Is
two
sites?

COUNCILMEMBER
that will be linked
system as wen.

--which,
are primarily
same groups
with this communicate, with your communication
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MR.IINUMA: They, they participate in, in, yeah, in the systems. So, there's two
different entities. One is a actual building facility that would house
programs or departments.
other is
the
bone

MATEO: So, so
one we're
now is not
considered temporary?
this is your
So,
new center comes on
that's going to cost us over $25
you're not going to be part of that particular center's operation. You're a
stand alone in this facility.
LL.d.V.LL" .......

"'>.

MR. IINUMA: It's, it's not our facility per se, this particular item. It is the
communications network, all the microwave powers, all the hardware, and
stuff that goes along with making the push to talk, which is the basic hand
held radios and, and other systems talk, be able to talk with each other.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, your construction projection then for ten and
11, that again is software. It's ... there is no physical structure you're going
to build. The tower and the building you referenced is not part of this
project. It's part of the future center.
MR. IINUMA: This is part of the communication system.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: What are you building for $2.4 million?

kept
to a
standard. What we're looking at with this particular project is to continue
on our assessment of where we are, where we have been, and where we
need to go because it has, you know, again the life of the system has, you
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know, deteriorated over past several years. So, it's a real separate entity
other than I, I don't think you can, you can speak with this on a, in the
same context as the Emergency Operating Center, Management Center
talking
a totally different
just
emergency responders.
is a separate project. Although,
me, and I
want to
matters more,
of equipments
we
center
would certainly
this communications
,",,,,UU" ...UL"' ... ' " , , , , , , ,

,",V,HU';',",

"'POl'Urc,,"

done. I,

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
you.

clear.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman, for my second
opportunity. I just wanted to find out, Director Iinuma, on both projects is
there funding from Federal Homeland Security to supplement County
funding or County funding leveraging Federal funding?

IS
.. ""un.}"" Interoperability
that's going to
know, at least another several hundred thousand dollars into the system.
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Over the years, we've been very fortunate to leverage those monies.
We've done it very well and we'd like to continue to do that. So, I believe
in the, in the course of my, my tenure here, we've put in at least three plus
Huun_'" dollars of
Security
agam,
another maybe
to come on
so,
our sake, these two
you apply for Federal funding, grants,
projects
approved? Would
be
process or can
apply for funding prior to any approvals of projects.?
MR. IINUMA: Our, our funding efforts, in terms of securing Federal funds for
these kinds of initiatives are ongoing. Over the last several years, a
decade plus, Homeland Security monies were grants in aid. The next 2009
Budget process, they're going to be requiring a match. And when I look at
these funds here, it would provide our County with the necessary match
for the Federal funds. The, the Federal funding matches a 3-to-1 or 70,
75 percent match of the, of the project. So, if a, if a project was ... and
we'll, we'll be asking for these funding in the neighborhood of about a
million dollars then the County would have to put up about $250,000. I
believe these funds would be allowable as our match.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for that information,
Director. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
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MR. IINUMA: Yeah, we've got to get away from the analog and, and, I think, at
this time too I'd also like to say that while we, we focus on voice that a lot
ofit, a lot of the system will really allow the County's MIS Department to
...uH~"'-'U at a higher level too because it'll anow
to piggy back on
Microwave
voice system and
data to
through it too. So,
System is not only for voice
also
move to get away
IS

you. Members, anymore questions
particular project?
not, Members,
concludes our review
the Civil Defense. If you have any more questions in regards to the
program budget as well as the CIP, you can forward it to the Chair so that
we can get proper response from the department. Mr. Iinuma, thank you
very much. I know it was a pretty tough morning for you, but we
appreciate the infonnation that you provided to us this morning. Thank
you.
MR. IINUMA: Thank you, Chair, and thank you to the Members. Believe me
that if there's any opportunity for us to clarify whatever questions you
have, we're certainly available for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, I, I know, we do have the
Director and Deputy Director from the Housing and Human Concerns, but
before I call on them, I just want to find out from you folks if you guys do
have any appointments after that's going to happen between 12:00 p.m.
and 1 :30 p.m. What the Chair will want to do is that rather than break,
you know, for
an hour, you know, review for half an
an

1

a.m.

1:05

PONTANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, with us this afternoon, we do have the Department
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of Housing and Human Concerns. We do have the Director, Ms. Vanessa
Medeiros, as well as, the Deputy Director, Ms. Lori Tsuhako. Members,
before we go to the Q & A in regards to the department's budget, at this
time,
like to
Pablo to provide us
an
Mr.
good
Concerns is a
general
You
Budget Staff prepared.
There's four programs under the General Fund.
There's an
Administration Program, a Housing Program, Human Concerns Program,
and Animal Management Program. Excuse me. If you look at that first
page again, on the third column, it will show any changes from the Fiscal
Year '09 ... (end o/tape, start 3A) . .. Budget. They have a net decrease
over the past year of 121,000 for a net decrease of 7 percent.
This department is requesting two expansion positions. One will be in the
Administration Program and the other in the Housing, two others in the
Housing Program.
In equipment area, the Administration Program is requesting equipment of
3,200, which we'll see on the next page. And the Human Concerns
Program has a request for 63,000, which consists primarily of two
replacement vehicles.

area.
were some errors,
step increase
certain employees. As soon as we can
that, we'll, we'll provide copies to this Committee. Presently that is
projected to be a $13,000 increase. And in Operations, there's a 54,000.
And in this Housing Program, there's a request for two expansion
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positions, a Housing Program Specialist III and Specialist I. Director and
Deputy Director from the Housing and Human Concerns will be able to
answer your questions on those.
next program is
Concerns
again, we
do ... we are looking
the salaries
wages .
Concerns Program, the
appears to be some adjustments H"""'U~,U
an increase of $11,000.
soon as we n~i.:;OnCI
copies to this Committee. Operations expense and
has gone done versus the prior year.
the Operations section, I wanted to
note that there's a rental amount, which is missing. There's shared rent
and it should have been among three offices, the Human Concerns, the
Volunteer Center, and Grants Management. And unfortunately, we
missed, the Budget Staff missed the Grants Management Section. So,
we'll be requesting another $35,153 in that area. As soon as we reconcile
everything, we'll like I said prepare a written statement for the Committee
to consider. And this here, there at the bottom of the page you also see
request for equipment and Director Medeiros or Deputy Director Tsuhako
can answer your questions on those items.
.......U.LUH

UBUH,ESL

The last program is the Animal Management Program. And here, you'll
see basically an increase of 4.7 percent up in Operations from 1.4 million
to 1.5 million. There's no EP counts in this particular program. That will
be all for the overview, Chair Pontanilla. Thank you.

ensure
social well-being,
sustainability, and economic vitality. The County's goals as it relates to
our department is to strengthen and build communities that include
affordable housing, to provide effective public services that are fiscally
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responsible, to respect and celebrate the unique social and cultural
characteristics of the people of Maui County. Our department's mission is
to support and empower our community to reach its fullest potential, for
well-being
self-reliance.
to
goals are to
address
needs

Department of Housing and Human Concerns is the most diverse of
all the departments within the County. You could actually say we are the
mix plate department. Through our Administration, Housing, Human
Concerns, and Animal Management Programs, we provide direct services,
programs, and partnerships to a wide spectrum of citizens, including
infants, toddlers, young children, teens, young adults, families, active
seniors, and frail elderly, the immigrants, and yes, even the cats and dogs.
Most of our staff are on the front lines providing direct service to
individuals, families, and organizations to address the critical needs of our
community. It is highly likely that a member of your family or someone
you know is receiving, has received, or will receive assistance through one
of the many services and programs our department provides.
In preparing our budget for Fiscal Year '09, we took into account the
potential tough time ahead. As was presented by Budget Director Pablo,
we decreased our overall departmental budget by almost 1 percent.
of core
Overall our Fiscal
' 09 Budget is focused on

you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, at this time, we are going to be
reviewing the Administration Program. Director, if you have any
comments in regards to the Administration Program.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes, thank you. With regards to the Administration Program,
basically going back to salaries and wages and our request for an
expansion position. The department is requesting an expansion position in
the Administration Program for an accountant position. Housing and
Human Concerns receives over $20 million in grant revenues alone.
That's not even counting our, our General Fund budget. Our department
budget is approximately 17.5 million. We oversee and monitor more than
150 grants and grant line items totaling more than $10 million. We feel
that it's critical for the Director and Deputy Director to have an updated
information and data on the department expenditures for better fiscal
accountability and responsibility. This is an area that we feel is very
critical in, in our department. We are not receiving budget data on a
timely basis that we feel is necessary, and for the size of our department
and what we're responsible for it is sometimes difficult to even provide
that information to you, and that's the reason why we're asking for this
expansion position.
In terms of the rental, sizable increase, and this is due to our move to One
Main Plaza. Other than that, in terms of equipment, the only request we're
asking for is for the lease, the copier for the lease, lease copier. I should
have had lunch.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I got candies, you want? Thank you.
MS. MEDEIROS: I bought my trail mix with me just in case.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank, thank you very much. Madam
Director and Deputy, good afternoon. It's nice to have you here in the
chamber with us. I'd like to just start off, just from the very beginning,
recognizing the department, the department's goals. The very first one on
10-3, indicates develop and maintain high performance and morals
through workshop and activities to foster employee participation and
work, work place cohesiveness. I'm glad that this is the number one
priority in the department and I'd like to get a comment from the
department in how you plan in accomplishing this because the importance
is not only as we both know, Council's responsibility to the community
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and the Department's responsibility to the community. In order for you to
be effective you need to have a workforce that is responsive and ready to
provide the services. Can you tell me how you plan on en ... , enhancing
this particular goal?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Councilmember Mateo, thank you for your question. We've
actually already begun that process. At the end of February, the
department planned an event for all employees. It was a half day event
that was meant to bring people together and to start the process of really
looking at our department and trying to make those changes in, in team
building, and the, the process was facilitated by the Neighborhood Place
of Wailuku, and it was a good event. We received some very, very
positive comments from the employees about having that time to be
together. And I think that we are going to try ovcr the next year to have
more, create more opportunities for the employees to do that, and to
celebrate working together because, I think, sometimes we all work in our
little sections and there's not very many opportunities to come together
and to see ourselves as part of a larger team. And that was what the
Director and I intended to do when we put together that training.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. On the next page, 10-4,
under your Perfonnance Measures, the second bullet listed indicates the
number of meetings to address red tape issues relating to affordable
housing, and you're indicating that there were 12 projected meetings in
'08 and in '09 you anticipate 12. So, what this tells me is we going be in
the same old, same old mess because you need more than 12 meetings
because the red tape has been a really difficult barrier for us to pass. And
as the department's priority, I'm hoping that we're able to work with you
to assist the department's needs in helping to alleviate some of the red tape
issues. I do know you have a new individual on board that will also be
providing additional assistance in the housing area. So, can you tell me
how we came out with 12 meetings and the anticipation of what you will
be able accomplish in, in these meetings?
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you, Councilmember Mateo. I have to say very
unfortunately this, this item here was a leftover from the previous
Administration and, and our Perfonnance Measures is, is another step,
another area that the Deputy and I are looking into in tenns of whether
these perfonnance measures really tell a tale of what we're actually doing.
Certainly 12 meetings, which is one meeting per month, mayor may not
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address the situation. I know essentially in the last couple of weeks the
new Housing administrator and I have had at least eight meetings. So,
again, we're working towards this ... some of these numbers I, I, and, and
these performance measures overall, and this is an issue we're looking at
overall in our department in terms of are the performance measures truly
measurable of what we are actually doing. And this has been a sore spot
for us. We have anticipated and we had hoped to try and get this taken
cared of with this budget, but we, we ran out of time in doing it. But it's a
measure that we are working on.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and there, then if you and the Deputy had,
you know, had eight meetings just in a short period of time, then the
expectation would be a definite increase and perhaps some of kind of
recommendation that'll be perhaps forwarded to us or to Administration to
help in addressing the red tape issues. Is that an expectation of your
meetings?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, I think, you know, there'S, there's two questions in
terms of red tape. Is, you know, is the red tape on our side, you know, are
we delaying activities or our reviews? Or, is the delay in terms of
legislative review? And then that's part of what we have to look at. You
know, when we talk about red tape, which side of the fence are we
actually talking about. If it's our side then definitely that's something we
have to work towards and part of that is in the Housing Program in some
ofthe requests that we're making within the Housing Program.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: But some of the, some of the red tape, for
example, when this, when this body approved reduction in fees, the
agency responsible for eliminating some of those fees was still charging
those fees. So, I guess, the communication aspect between what was
reduced was virtually not until complaints come in and then we need to
follow up on some of those items that had not been actually initiated or
employees were just not informed of reduction in fees. So, all of those, all
of those issues just compounds the need when dealing with, with
affordable housing. Chairman, I will at this point, I will yield.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. Of course, you
know, this is the department that holds a great spot in my heart. I was
reading your accomplishments for 2007, Director Medeiros, and I noticed
that there is a comment about the County's Homeless Response Team and
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how everybody worked together to complete the Kanaha Beach cleanup.
My .. .I have a couple questions about the, the status at this time. You
know, do we see homelessness increasing on Maui and did we just
succeed in taking them from one place and moved to another? Or, can
you kind of update us on what's the situation?
MS. MEDEIROS: I'll ask the Deputy Director to respond to that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, thank you.
MS. TSUHAKO: Good afternoon, Councilmember Baisa. Thank you for your
question. It gives me a good opportunity to update everyone on the
situation. The Homeless Response Team was the, the County's gathering
of our County departments to address big issues related to homelessness
and specifically to certain locations. I think it was first initiated when the
break water population was growing and problems were occurring as a
result of that.
We reinitiated that Homeless Response Team to address the illegal
campers at Kanaha, and together with community partners from Ka Hale
A Ke Ola Family Life Center and the Salvation Army and various other
places, we were able to inform the campers and, and give them plenty of
the notice and preparation and give them a list of resources where they
could go to get help, if they wanted to get help in terms of being housed.
It was done in a very organized way and I think in a very humane way. I
don't think .. .l think that a lot of people did relocate to other areas. I think
that we probably addressed maybe 50 percent of the homeless people and
help them in finding more permanent housing situations. But there's a,
there's a still a sizable portion of those folks who for whatever reasons did
not choose to move into permanent housing or could not afford to move
into the options that were presented for them.
The Homeless Response Team really was there to coordinate the County's
effort for that intervention. And since that time, what I and Housing
Commissioner Ridao have done is we've, we've tried to make a different
entity, which is our Maui Alliance Continuum of Care a much stronger
presence in terms of those interventions. And so, the Homeless Response
Team is sort of the work of, our work and the Homeless Response Team
has sort of melded into the continuum of care because the way HUD is
going with their Federal funding, our community's continuum of care,
which is the collaboration of all the homeless providers as well as all the
services that are related to homelessness, has to take a more active role in

- 51 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 10, 2008

deciding what services are needed, which services are priorities, and
where the funding goes.
So, for example, this year when the Hawaii Public Housing Authority put
out their emergency shelter grants the continuum of care actually took
responsibility for accepting those proposals, scoring them, and making
funding recommendations to the Public Housing Authority. So, we've
been shifting our efforts to make the continuum, which is a more broadly
representative of our community, take more responsibility for determining
the needs because they're the people on the ground who know how many
homeless are out there, who talk with them regularly, and who are the,
who are the really the ones who will work them, with the homeless folks
to try and get them into services that they may need.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I was trying to get a handle on, you know,
whether or not our homelessness problem is better or worse, and it's kind
of hard to tell. I guess maybe a better question is, is anyone, or has
anyone tried to count who our homeless people are? And I know that's
really hard 'cause many of them are disbursed in the trees, in the bushes.
But, you know, it worries me because it seems like when I drive out in the
evening or even when you fly over, you still see the blue tarps
everywhere. And, you know, if we just move them from here to there, we
haven't solved it. So, I'm, I'm just wondering if this is just a perception
or, or do we still have a big conccrn that we should be concerned about?
MS. TSUHAKO: We do still have a big concern, yes. And I think that the ... to
answer your question factually actually there was a point-in-time count
that was conducted last January. The next point-in-time count will be in
January of '09. And that's the ... HUD has, has created this, this
mechanism for count, actually counting homelessness, homeless people,
and they choose one day, and a certain number of people are designated to
go out to do the count, and for every, every fifth person who is seen has to
be interviewed and demographic information obtained from them. We
know that the last time the point-in-time count was conducted, it was a
very rainy and stormy day and that many of the homeless who the
providers knew to be in a certain area were not there because they needed
shelter and so they maybe camped out at relatives' homes or something
like that and then were not counted. So, we know that, I, I think, the
number was approximately 4,000 for Maui County, and we know that is
an under-representation of the number of homeless, the number of people
are doubled up in, in other people's homes, and who don't have their own
dwellings in which to live.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. I won't pursue this at this
point but later on when we get to housing I have a few more questions.
Thank you very much.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, you administer. .. well, I guess, this
would be under grants. So, I probably have to wait till then. But you
administer the Homeless Resource Center. Is that a grant like Ka Hale 0
Ke Ola or Na Hale 0 Wainee?
MS. MEDEIROS: That's, yes, we do provide them some grants.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and so, I'll save my question for the
grants part of this. But with regard to, I guess, the personnel and the
success of the Section 8 program, one of the challenges, I think, we're,
we're kind of facing in that regard is the, I guess, the rents, and the
availability of housing, so that people can utilize their Section 8
certificates. So, as one of your goals and objectives, did you address that
as a specific item, you know, of how we're going to kind of meet those
challenges?
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay, I guess, you're talking about the Housing Program or
are you talking about that in the Administration Program?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm talking about it in, I guess, in the Section
8, you have your Administration personnel that administer the Section 8
program. And I just wondered if one of the goals in administering the
program was to work towards developing resources where those kinds of
things could, I guess, be utilized. But would that be more under the actual
program itself-the Section 8 program?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes, actually, correct me if I'm wrong in understanding what,
what you're asking about. The concern, of course, with respect to our, our
Section 8 program is the difficulty in which families are able to find
suitable rentals.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
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MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. Our, our Section 8 program does not actively pursue
new rentals, but it is an area that we have been talking about with, with
our Housing Division, of course, with our new Housing administrator, is
possibly conducting educational workshops for potential lenders. And,
and part of it may be to help them understand what the process is and
what's involved. That it is not as difficult a process or there isn't as much
paper work, you know, when people think about HUD, they think about,
oh my god, I got all this paper work I have to do. And, and that's area that
we're actually moving towards is, is, is trying to detennine whether or not
we can do some educational workshops in the different areas that might
lend itself to poten ... , potential homeowners or landlords to open up.
Secondarily, and I'm skipping over several programs now, because like I
said, we are the mixed plate and we all have to kind of work together.
One of the, the other programs that we have been supporting and trying to
move towards, and this is sort of in our grants line item area, is, is a
movement towards education. And I sort of call it a good renter program.
But, it's education for a lot of our renters, especially in the low income
areas to understand a little bit more about their kuleana in, in when they
rent a place and what their, what their roles are, and what responsibilities
they have, which hopefully minimizes the damage that is sometimes left
when they're left over, which then the landlord say, I don't want to rent to
a Section 8. So, this is sort of part of a, sort of broader package, but we're
seeing these as some of the challenges and we're asking the question, what
can we do to try and alleviate this and we're trying to work at it from both
sides. One is to help educate the renters in tenns of if you want to
continue renting for a longer period of time, you really have to kind of
help the landlord out by, you know, taking care of the place. And at the
same time also provide education for potential landlords.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and, and I can appreciate 'cause it,
my question kind of goes over all those areas. And yet, I guess, when I'm
looking at the, the goal and objective or how are the funds can actually be
utilized might even be a better question because when you receive money
under Section 8 usually there's parameters that are attached to the use of
those funds, what they mayor may not bc used for. But when I look at
Administration, in general, I look at it in a, I guess, a broader overview.
And so, what I would be looking at is if in the Administration of the actual
Section 8 program, and looking at it strictly as an administrator, are there
monies that you could actually utilize for, or from that program within
Administration to see if you can identify and then conduct, you know, like
you say educational workshops or take a pro active approach in trying to
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actually develop more landlords or more situations, or, or even possibly a
suggestion to the Council whereby we would then incentavise people who
would get into this potential rental pool and, you know, if we can't look at
you 'cause you guys deal with it all the time. We have to some how be
able to find if it's not Administration's function in, within the budget that
you have and within the limits on those funds, then what is that we have to
do to create that dialogue because if I get one complaint it's a hundred
complaints and many times people can't use the Section 8 vouchers
because where they're going to go. There's nothing available, and as you
said, there's other people that won't rent. So, I'm just trying to identify is
it possible to have a goal and objective or have something within
Administration that actually looks beyond just the nuts and bolts and
processing paper work to actually get to that point of somebody taking the
larger view and taking the initiative to move forward with that.
MS. MEDEIROS: Again, certainly, this is something that we are trying to work
towards, you know, and not sure if we can do it under the Section 8
monies, but, you know, whatever, wherever we, we are able to. Like I
said, this is something we are actually moving towards. So, so, we're
heading towards that. We're trying to get more data, more information on,
on landlords, potential landlords. Certainly, it is one of the objectives in
our Housing Program to, to promote increases in affordable rentals. We
can, we can promote and support it. The back end of that is that because
it's developers building it, it depends on the timing of that, but certainly
we are promoting this and we're supporting this.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and because all of us are on
budget, I know, we look at ways where we can generate revenues, but then
also I kind of look at it that if people could receive possibly through your
suggestion and your overview of this subject, if people could receive
maybe for doing an affordable rental or a Section 8, that they could
actually receive a homeowner exemption for a property they're not really
residing in. So, those are the kinds of things that I'm looking at because
you deal with it all the time. We deal with it when we get complaints. So,
that's kind of where my thinking is but anything along those ... (end of
tape, start 3E) . .. to know what recommendations you have.
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Fast question. In, in
regards to perfonnance measures like them, I, I notice that, you know, we,
we utilize a lot of numbers, yeah, and certain times we use pcrcent
satisfaction, satisfaction. I was looking at your employees satisfactory
rating. So, the department is striving to have 85 percent of the employees
in the department satisfied in regards to the department's operations? Or
is it 85 percent of the employees were surveyed?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yeah, I believe, and again, this is, this is another one of those,
those, those very old perfonnance measures. Certainly, we would love to
have 100 percent satisfaction, but we always, we always realize that we're
not going to get 100, 100 percent. And, I think, what we're looking at is,
is basically over all employee satisfaction with, with their jobs and what
they're doing. You know, being, being able to come to work and feeling
good about what you're about to do that day. And I know I addressed our,
our Housing staff, and one of the things that I and I told them, was that
they have to realize, and this is really for all of our staff, that, that they
have to realize that every single day they make a difference in some
family's life. You know, whether it's housing or whether it's services or
programs. Every single day that they come to work they make a
difference. And if they choose not to work today, then they may have
negatively impacted a family. And so, this is part of what we're trying to,
to move towards. Also in tenns of the maintaining high perfonnance,
morale, workshop activities, I believe, our department is diverse as it has
been ... has at some point started to go off in their own tangents, and we're
trying to bring everybody back to realize that we are a department, and
that we still have to work together as a team.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you for that infonnation in regards to
internally. Do you have any external survey, people that, you know, you
provide services to in regards to the department's operations?
MS. MEDEIROS: Not at this point.
external survey at this time.

We, unfortunately, we don't have an

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You looking in the future? Would you
have something like that considered?
MS. MEDEIROS: Certainly, I just, the other piece of, of, of our Administration's
operations is we're actually looking at our website and we feel that our
website is under utilized. And this is an area that we feel we need to work
a little bit harder on. Again, not everybody uses a computer, but a lot of
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people do, do use computers and do go to the website. And we feel that
our, our website needs to be more active and integrative in terms of
providing much more information and being able to provide much more in
terms of response. And I just actually had a staff person who went to a
training, I believe, it was last week, on creating web, web surveys, I
believe it was. And so, we want to be able to ut. .. , utilize this tool on our
website to create these type of surveys that we can receive information
from externally on what we're doing or how we're doing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you for that piece of information in regards
to what the department is trying to do. And, and, you know, it's not only
for your department but for the rest of the departments in order for us to
become more efficient and to improve our services. We do need external
surveys for the customers that we serve, not only internally. Member
Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And thank you,
Director and Deputy Director, for your overview, and the Budget
Director's overview of your department. As part of the Administration
portion that we're reviewing right now, Mr. Chairman, that includes the B
account?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, the Administration Program, which is the B,
C ... A, B, and C accounts.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: All right. So, Director and Deputy Director,
I tum your attention to Budget Details, Page 8-4, and let me know when
you're there.
MS. MEDEIROS: I'm there.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. First of all, under Other Costs, Subobject Code 6231 and 6235. The reason why 6231 no longer has a request
in '09 is because that amount has been moved to 6235?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes. When we were doing our budget what we were told is
that 6231 is rental of a building versus 6235 is rental of an office space.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, that increase in rent for your '09
request is for the rental of One Main Plaza?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And then if you move up to utilities
on the same page, does your rental include all the utilities because you
have nothing for electricity, phone, or water?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, the rent includes all the utilities in the
monthly or annual cost?
MS. MEDEIROS: Right, it's in the, the CAM.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, all right, thank you. And then I
wanted to follow up a good question that Member Mateo brought up about
red tape, you know, interest me too because this Council and my
colleagues, we're very supportive in providing funds for us to consider the
first senior affordable housing in Hana in the last budget. And we had the
money budgeted and it was in your department, but we had a very difficult
time getting that funds so that we could do a feasibility study and move
the project along. The land was donated. So, we had that under our belt
and we just needed to do a feasibility study to meet HUD's requirements.
And so, we had asked Hale Mahaolu, which we felt was the most
experienced agency in doing senior affordable housing to help us with
that. I just wanted to know what can we do to speed the process because
their application for those funds that we budgeted took many applications
or efforts, and I'm still not sure where we are with that. Can you explain
for me why it was that difficult for us to get funds that this body already,
you know, had appropriated for that reason?
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. The, the, the challenge for us came with, sorry.
The challenge for us came with the monies that were identified for that
item was in our Housing Program and it was listed under affordable
housing study. However, when we reccived the application from the
nonprofit organization, it included much more than a housing study. It
included, not only a housing study, but also a services study. And we then
had to verify whether or not we could use Housing Program monies for a
social, social service component. And that is the difficulty that we had.
What we did, eventually, was we were able to find a portion of the money
under our Human Concerns Program to be able to provide for the social
service component of the contract and the remainder from Housing. In
that way, we wanted to make sure that we did not violate the Budget
Ordinance.
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Secondarily, we did sign the agreement with the organization. However,
and we, we signed it to get this moving. However, one of the components
of the contract, and that we do for all nonprofits, is that we ask them to
provide us with a scope of work, such that, we are able to monitor their
activities. You should be aware that to date, we have not received the
scope of work. So, one of the terms that we had in the contract was that
we would not be able to release any monies until we received an adequate
scope of service. Otherwise, we have no way of knowing how to monitor
their activities.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. MEDEIROS: We've done everything in our power to be able to execute the
contract so we can get this thing going, but at the same time, and we're
working with the nonprofit in providing us with a scope of work. So, that
we know what do you plan to do? How do you plan to do it? So, that we
can monitor as we do with every other nonprofit because it wouldn't be
fair for us to simply say, you know, here's the contract, here's the money,
and there's no monitoring.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for that information. What
concerns me is here we have an agency that who you used to work to, so
I'm sure you're more familiar with them than I am. But, I believe, they've
been in existence of 40 plus years? Is that a correct description?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Okay. And they have several very
successful senior housing complexes throughout our County. And I'm
wondering why would an agency like that with 40 years of experience
have a difficulty in complying with your requirements in the housing
department for that. And I know, you did explain some of it, but it seems
like an agency with that kind of experience would've done it many times
before for this similar kind of work we're trying to get in Hana. And, you
know, we didn't want to have the money lapse. We wanted to be sure we
could start this project as soon as we could. So, what can we do to make
the process for expedient?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, there, there's two things that happens. Number one,
when, when a budget, when a new budget starts, first of all, all of the line
items that we have, our grants division has to work on those. And we
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actually sort of have two competing activities going on because you
have ... they're dealing with the, the fourth quarter monitoring and reports
for the end of the previous year for all of the grants that they manage.
And then at the same time, they're trying to do the grants for the new
fiscal year period. So, the process that they first tried to work with is for
those agencies that are receiving monies again. Okay, and, and if it's the
same program, they're the easiest ones to take care of first because
everything's in place.
When we have new line items for a new project or program that one takes
a little bit longer. Sometimes it is because the nonprofit is not organized
to the level that is required to reeeive County grant money and then our
staff has to work with them to get them up to, up to the, the criteria that
they need to. In some cases, it takes a while for the nonprofits to respond
to us in terms of, again, the information that we need. And we do try to be
as, as clear with them as to what we need, what's required, and the whole
idea, again, really is, you know, how do we get from appropriating the
money, to contracting the money, to using the money, to monitoring, to
getting the work done. And, and there are a lot of different things that can
happen. Our staff, I know, works very, very hard to work with the
organizations to try and get them to understand what we need and to help
them to achieve that level so that we do ... we can complete our contracts
with them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Okay, thank you, Director, for that
information, and we'll continue to work with you and that nonprofit so
that we can move this funding and project ahead. Thank you for your
responses. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
MS. MEDEIROS: If, if can add one more piece -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MS. MEDEIROS: --that, that another area that in line with, with grant line items,
especially when there's new grant line items, that we've been discussing
with our grant's division is that and for your consideration. It really helps
us if new grant line items are, are submitted by Council, it helps us to
know what the intent and purpose is. So, if there's some way that we are
actually able to work with you for new grant line items because you have
all your discussions and deliberations that take place and then, you know,
we hear about this again, in, in, at the end of May, in June, and we're
trying to rev up for the new time period. And a lot of times what happens
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is you may have a new line item in there. It may not be really clear as to
what it's for and the nonprofit, of course, on July 1st is at our door saying,
give me the money, and sometimes we're not very clear on what is its
purpose for, what, you know, and it takes a while for us to kind of go back
to look through the minutes of the mcetings to find out what were the
discussions, what was the intent of this line item. So, that's one of the
areas that, that certainly will help us. Once we know what the intent is, we
can really move forward on saying this is what the discussion was, this
was the intent of the money, this is how we can move forward and help
them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, just to allow me one response to that,
please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, so, does the
department and the housing unit have a guideline or a form that we can
follow when we identify a project and describe it because as you can see
on the budget documents there's not very much room to totally and
specifically describe a funding purpose. So, are you saying we need to
come up with some kind of description more specifically so that the
department would be able to understand the intent of the funding?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, I think, I think, there's one of two things that, that could
take place. One is sometimes you do put provisos as part of the line item
that provisos can provide some clarification as to what the intent is. Other
than that what we can do is we can work with you and develop a very
simple one page piece of paper that basically says who, what, how much.
And, and, again, it just provides us with a little bit of clarification so that
we can assist the nonprofit right from the get go and helping them provide
in, in putting together their paperwork for us. Our grant's division does
have a very good check list of information and as soon as we do receive
the, the confirmed budget, we are already contacting the nonprofits and
providing them with a check list of what information we need.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you, Director. And thank you,
Mr. Chairman. I'll, I'll try and work with you as far as how we can better,
you know, expedite the funding process and the specific description
required by the department. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, what, what I just heard is that for all of
the grantees, whenever a new administration comes in, of course, you
know, you know, if, if you're not familiar with the, the nonprofits that are
requesting for grants, do you ... does the department make an effort to meet
with the grantees, you know, as a new administration or new director like
your ... , yourselves?
MS. MEDEIROS: I, I believe, on the line item grants, and I don't want to get into
something that you're going to discuss tomorrow, but on the line item
grants we did take an extensive amount of work this year to try and get
information from all of the grantees, number one, to get a real feel for
what the intent was. And then, we do, of course, get requests, and some of
the requests go straight to the Mayor's office. Some of the requests comes
to our department and sometimes we don't always, you know, exchange
all the exact information. But we do our best. Most of the new line items
are not necessary put in by the department. Most of the new line items are
generally put in by the Mayor as part of her budget into ours. So, again,
we usually get that information from the Mayor's office or the Budget
office as far as what the intent was.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Madam
Director, Madam Deputy. First of all, let me state the equipment wise, I
have no issues, operations, the increase in rent, I presume that's due to the
One Main Plaza, so I won't even go there.
But I will ... would like to talk about the requested expansion position,
Accountant IV. As we all know, expansion requests during this time
period is not, we're not in the best of times. We don't have ... our monies
sort of limited. And for us, as representatives of the community, we have
to try and justify inflating government. So, I know you mentioned in your
opening remarks about the need for this position and that this would help,
I guess, get bud ... , budget data to you in a more timely fashion. Can I
first ask, I'm looking at all the other personnel in your, this particular, in
your department, Admin Program. You have an Administration Assistant
II, Private Secretary, Secretary III, Staff Services Assistant. Now,
currently right now, who is performing the duties of what this
Accountant IV would do?
MS. MEDEIROS: I am. Unfortunately, I put together the whole budget and this
is something that I, you know, as again a director and deputy director
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should not be spending, you know, hours and hours of work trying to put
together and compiling a budget. Our, our divisions will provide the
information to us. The original intent and was to have our administrative
assistant do it and as we discovered, he really didn't have the knowledge
and qualifications to put this information together. It really puts us at a
very limited level because, again, you know, we need, we need to respond
to Council in terms of what our uses is. As we start to look at our
expenditure, we start to look at what are we trying to do. We're not being
able to get information in a timely fashion.
There are only two divisions in our department, Senior Services Division
and Office on Aging, and they have accountants in their divisions, and
they are able to track the usage of their monies very quickly. But we have
all of our other divisions who do not have an accountant. And again,
we're missing a lot of critical information in terms of putting together the
budget, monitoring the budget, monitoring the monies that we receive,
especially even in grant revenues, and I think that's a major weakness in
our department.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, well, I think, the job criteria of the
administrative assistant should be expanded possibly. I mean this person
is going to get a raise, 15.8 percent. You know, I mean, that's the purpose
of having an admin assistant to assist you as a director. I know your plate
is already full. So, which this kind of leads me to state that I have some
concerns then about this particular position. I guess, you know, that's why
you have an admin assistant, someone to do this. If we do approve this
then, other than monitoring the budget, can you assure this Committee
that, you know, the administration will be greatly enhanced and improved
because we hear it from the Cost of Government Commission and they
have issues about government bloating itself with, you know, requests like
these. So, what, what can you tell us, how will this enhance your
department to perform better in this area by having this Accountant IV
person?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, there's two things again. First of all is in, in compiling
the budget to start with is, is a major area. But, I think, the other and the
most important part is being able to track our usage. One of the concerns,
of course, with putting together the budget is whether or not we are
actually showing what our real usage is. And number two, the question
may be is the budget inflated or not inflated.
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And, I know, from the Council's perspective, you certainly don't want to
see an inflated budget. This is an area in the, in the short time that we've
been on line that we've had a very difficult time trying to get clear
information on what we have and what our usage has been. And we don't
want to waste money. It's obviously, number one, it's a use it or lose it
situation. But we also wanted to be able to monitor our divisions in terms
of, if you ask for this money in a budget, are you using it adequately? Are
you using it in a timely fashion? If you're not using it, then why should
we continue with this budget in next fiscal year? Then we should decrease
your budget because maybe somebody else needs it or we just decrease it
period. You know, certainly the decision on, on that expansion position is
in your hands. I don't know how else to tell you how important it is to us,
but we leave it in your hands.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Madam Director, for that
explanation. And Chair for me, it's going to take a lot of convincing for
me to support this expansion request. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I know one of the biggest concerns that
we have, not only, probably not only your department, but there's another
department where monitoring is very important when, you know, we
spend big money to support that department. Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Thank you for the second
opportunity. I wanted to, to follow up on, on two, on, on two things. One
is directed to you, Mr. Chair. This is the second department that has, as
we've seen today, that has advised us that some of the items listed on, on
the program is not their addition to the budget. So, I'm concerned because
for us we review this as a, as a verified document that is indicative of not
only performance, goals, but also objectives. And at this point now, we
don't know which was another Administration's objective and which were
not. So, that's the first comment to you, Mr. Chairman.
Secondly, in response to the Director's request for a form to understand
intent. My, my concern would be the Budget Director is right next to you.
He sits through all of our proceedings. He should be having a better
understanding of intent. He is the one that implements the budget. So, I
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would suggest dealing with the Budget Director in understanding intent
for grants that had been added to the budget. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I just like to make a comment in regards
to your first comment to me in regards to the performance measures.
Whcn you look at the numbers, it's just strictly across the board, and if
you go back to '06, '05, you probably see the same number. Like the
Budget Director told us this morning that the Administration is now taking
a look at all the performance measures and goals and how do we achieve
those objectives. I come from an industry where we do performance and
goals very differently. It's either, you know, you meet satisfaction or you
don't. And if you don't meet satisfaction by a certain percentage, either
you look for new people or you improve in that particular area. Just to
share that with you.
And the second item, I agree with you in regards to what is being
requested. So, with that, Members, anymore questions in regards to the
program budget? If not, we go to the next program-Housing Program.
Director?
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. In the Housing Program, we are requesting two
expansion positions. I think, it's, first of all, it's important to understand
the difference between in our Housing Program, and let me just sort of flip
to the page here. In our Housing Division, we actually sort of have two
groups of, of staff. One is a Section 8 staff, which is under the grant
revenues, and they have approximately 22 employees.
Under the
Housing, what we call Housing Administrative staff, there's currently
eight positions. The two new positions, expansion positions, and I, I
realize how difficult it is to ask for expansion positions but, you know, we
have to ask for it 'cause if we don't ask, you don't know.
The reason housing mandates have increased the work requirements for
existing staff: coordination, tracking, reviews and monitoring of affordable
housing fund, first time homebuyers fund, residential workforce housing
policy, new developments, building permit reviews, preliminary
subdivision reviews, Land Use reviews, EA reviews, 20lH reviews,
workforce housing agreement reviews, tracking and monitoring of in lieu
fees from residential workforce housing agreements, tracking and
monitoring of prior affordable housing developments, County housing
projects, coordination and tracking and monitoring of housing program,
grant line items. In addition, as part of a planned reorganization of the
Housing Division, we are trying to provide for entry level positions as part
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of a career ladder series. There's not too many people outside that
actually have housing background. And the only way you're going to be
able to get them into the Housing Division is to allow for an entry level in
which they can learn about housing and learn about the diversity that we
deal with. It also allows for cross training and better coverage. Currently,
we have one person assigned to one duty. If that person goes on vacation,
or is out sick, everything stops. And this is when we talk about red tape.
This is sometimes where the buck stops because you don't have staff who
is trained that can cover and provide coverage for the reviews that are
required. It also provides for succession within the Housing Division. It
stems the loss of institutional knowledge from retirements. We anticipate
at this point that the current senior staff in our Housing Division will
likely retire within the next seven to ten years.
The expansion positions are number one an opportunity for us to meet the
requirements that have been placed upon us. These requirements have
come over the last two years in terms of housing mandates. I don't think
that anybody realized how much work was going to be involved in it. One
of the questions you may ask is, you know, within Housing Program, you
did provide a position, a housing specialist, and you're probably going to
ask the question it still remains vacant. Yes, it does remain vacant and the
reason for that is, again, I believe, that no one really knew what that
position was going to do or what that position is going to be responsible
for.
We unfortunately had the retirement of the housing administrator. We
unfortunately had the assistant housing administrator leave us and we been
trying to work on that position description. I am happy to say that our
upcoming administrator has been very diligent and we've actually
completed a, a draft and will be submitting that to DPS with a request for
manpower. But in looking at and preparing that job description and
realizing the work that I, I've had to do over the three to four months, we
really discovered that it's more than what one person can do.
Last year, our Housing Division reviewed over 600, 600 preliminary
subdivision reviews, and over 1,200 building permit applications. And I
would probably say that about at least a third of that was done by me
between December and the current month. And it's, again, it's very
difficult. This is stuff that one person cannot ... (end of tape, start 4A) . ..
units have to be affordable for 25 years and that adds 25 years of
monitoring on our Housing Division. And really how are we going to do
that? We're, we're still monitoring the things from behind, from the past,
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and we're having to monitor the things that's going to come up in the
future.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it?
MS. MEDEIROS: That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo, question?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan, thank you very much. And in
reference to the Director's last comments that's why the, the bill is up for
review every two years. The Director is welcome to submit amendments
to that bill to address it. Maybe the, if the Director can share infonnation
on the numbers of the individuals she services with the Section 8 program.
So, I have a better understanding of the .. .I do know you service a lot of
families. Can you tell me what the, the numbers are?
MS. MEDEIROS: Again, the, the Section 8 program just to clarify, the Section 8
program is covered under our grant revenues portion of the budget. The
monies that. .. they're a separate group basically. They provide, and I have
to try and remember the numbers here, over 1,300, I think, there's a
maximum, this is a magical number, 1,300, 1,367, I believe, was the
number of, of, of vouchers, housing, rental, subsidy vouchers. That's the
maximum number that they can serve. And, I believe, that we were, very,
very close to that maximum. We were like, you know, about a dozen
away from that number. So, for Section 8, they have pretty much maxed
the number ofvouchcrs. We anticipate our ... the wait list had gone down
a little over the last year, but we anticipate with the situation going on
financially, we anticipate that this will grow again in the next year or two.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Do you, do you currently have .. .is the current
wait list in close proximity to the number of vouchers you already
distribute?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, as I mentioned, the, the wait list, and I, I believe, the, the
last infonnation that we received was about a year or so ago, the wait list
pretty much equaled the number of vouchers. So, we already had people
with vouchers. You had 1,300 plus people with vouchers. You had
another 1,300 people on the wait list. And we had a little bit of a
clearance, partially because some people got off vouchers. Either some
people no longer applied or weren't interested anymore. So, the list had
gone down a little bit, but I understand we're, we're heading back up in
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tenus of our wait list back to about 1,300 and the time frame where it used
to be about three years is probably going to go back up to about a three
year waiting period.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you, and that's for the, the grants
part of it. The regular housing part of the program, could you tell me what
the status is of those programs that you read off like, like the First Time
Homebuyer's fund and the Rental Assistance program, can you give me,
give me a status?
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. In tenus of the Affordable Housing fund, as you are
aware, we did submit to, to Council the proposed annual plan for Fiscal
Year '09, as was required by the ordinance with our recommendations and
that process was a very lengthy process. We did do a request for
proposals. We did workshops. We received a number of applications and
had those applications reviewed by a Committee and the recommendations
made by the Committee, which was what we transmitted to Council. And
pending Council's review, acceptance, or denial, we'll be able to move on
that.
In tenus of the First Time Homebuyer's fund program, and I know this is
a sore spot for some Members, we did complete our proposed revisions to
our program guidelines in September last year as we had promised. We
had submitted to Corporation Counsel our request for amendments to the
ordinance and this where we had a little bit of difficulty, primarily,
because we do not control Corporation Counsel. We do not control how
they assign work or how long it takes.
The other challenge is that both the Administration and the Council dips
into the same well for assistance. So, if the Council is doing any kind of
amendments to ordinances or creating ordinances or bills or requiring
assistance from Corporation Counsel, we're tapping into the same people.
And what may happen as a result of that is they may put our work aside to
do and take care of, of your request. We did finally receive just this week
from Corporation Counsel the first draft of our proposed amendments to
the First Time Homebuyer's fund, and we just reviewed it today, and we
hope to have our, our proposed amendments transmitted to Council for
their consideration.
What was the other programs? Those are the two major ones I know.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Primarily those were my two, primary interests.
Then your department would also be responsible in working with
the ... that 2 percent from the real property tax?
MS. MEDEIROS: That, that's the Affordable Housing fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and can you tcll us how much you got in
that fund right now?
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. In the transmittal that we made to Council on the
Affordable Housing fund, the recommendations, annual plan, I believe, it
was $4.2 million, and the recommendation was for, I think, four different
projects that would provide 99 affordable housing units.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And that. .. the, the total request is for 4.2 for this
99?
MS. MEDEIROS: I believe it is 4.29. To, to understand is the monies are
actually the Fiscal Year '08 monies that we are proposing to use in Fiscal
Year '09. And it sort of makes sense to do it a little bit lagging because,
you know, the original projections for the 2 percent in the beginning ofFY
'08 may have been higher and now, of course, as we're seeing revenues
So, when we did the
may be reduced, it actually helps us.
recommendation, we did make sure we consulted with Finance to get the
final numbers from them.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, then I, I.. .some of the uses of the funds
then is essentially to, to nonprofit, nonprofit organizations for their
creation of these housing?
MS. MEDEIROS: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Is there any funds that were set aside for
individual access, so individuals could who are not part of these groups,
could come and, and request funds?
MS. MEDEIROS: Not out of the Affordable Housing fund. One of the, one of
the directives that we received from Council was that number one, they
wanted us to promote affordable housing. They wanted to make sure that
we promoted or, or funded projects that were going to be happening fairly
soon, and not three or five years from now. And we really tried to focus
on doing that the first time around.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, the First Time Homebuyer's fund is a focus
on the individual?
MS. MEDEIROS: The First Time Homebuyer's fund is a separate fund.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, not, yeah.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, because I'm looking at purpose, you talk
purpose and intent. And I'm looking at our initial intent and the initial
intent I just hope is still being adhered to because like the Rental
Assistance program, it was individual driven. That was, you know, so, I
just want to be sure that it is, it is still kept based on this body's original
intent.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It is still individual driven.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes. The First Time Homebuyer's, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Member Mateo asked a key question for me and
that was about the First Time Homebuyer's fund and what had prompted
that was I got an email this week from a friend who is a home mortgage
consultant. And he said can you guys please hurry up, I have about 300
families that would like to use some of that right now. So, I would
appreciate your, you know, we'll try to work with you. Let's get it going.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
MS. MEDEIROS: If I can add, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Director? Go.
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MS. MEDEIROS: Just to let you know, and if, if, if people call you about
programs, you know, please feel free to, to refer them to us. One of the
things, and we've gotten a couple of calls and people have asked us about
it, and what we've also told them is again while we're working on this that
we do also have the ADDI program. The American Dream Downpayment
Initiative program, which is for families who are at 80 percent and below
of median income. It's not a lot of money but so far in about four or five
years, we only made one grant.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And Director, when you were here last time,
didn't you tell us it was a real small amount of money?
MS. MEDEIROS: It was a small amount of money, but we also want to make
sure we use it. So, ifthere are any families that are 80 percent and below
of median then they qualify for this. We certainly would want to help
them with it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: How much of a grant do you think they could get?
MS. MEDEIROS: Our maximum if$IO,OOO.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And how much was the fund?
MS. MEDEIROS: I believe ...
MR. OSHIRO (spoke from the audience): Hundred twelve thousand.
MS. MEDEIROS: Hundred twelve thousand is the latest.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's a lot more than we heard the last time. So,
that's good, that's a possibility. I will ask this person to contact you.
Thank you very much.
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's why it's good to get together.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to
confirm with the Housing Division, your vacancies, you said the Assistant
Housing Administrator is still vacant?
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MS. MEDEIROS: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
positions in Housing?

And what other position?

Any other

MS. MEDEIROS: Yeah, wait. I can't get my list here. Let's see here. It's not
showing. Okay. I'm sorry. And this is based on the list you received that
you received from Personnel Services.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes.
MS. MEDEIROS: There is an Assistant Housing Administrator and we had done,
we, we, basically had done recruitment last year when we hired the
Assistant Housing Administrator. When that administrator left, we went
back to the list and we went to the next person that we felt would meet our
criteria and that person was not interested. So, our next step is to go back
and recruit again and on a more open basis. There is another position.
It's, it's on the list as a Senior Services Program Assistant, which is
actually there was ... apparently there was a transfer from our Senior
Services Division of a position to our Housing Division. It was an
individual that was transferred. We thought that the, the position had been
reallocated. If you look under .. .let me just make sure to see the number
here. I'm sorry. There was, there was a transfer, and this was prior to we,
we came on board. There was a transfer of a position from Senior
Services into Housing. That individual eventually took the secretary
positions, position because that became available. So, we're actually
working on that position in terms of reallocating and reassigning that
position. And the last position is a Clerk Typist Position III, which is
actually in our Section 8, which is under our grant revenues. So, for our
Housing Program those are the only three vacancies that we have.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and, and the Budget Details on Page
8-6, those two positions are not shown. Is there a reason for that as far as
positions coming under the Housing Division?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, the Housing Assistant Administrator position is shown.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. Senior Services Program Assistant.
MS. MEDEIROS: If you look ... this is the problem here becausc it's listed under
the budget as Housing Program Technician, which is the information we
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had received. That position was supposedly converted to a Housing
Program Technician.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, that's vacant?
MS. MEDEIROS: That's vacant, that's the position that we're trying to reallocate
and reassign.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the Clerk Typist III is not also shown?
MS. MEDEIROS: That just recently happened and that's actually in our Section
8 grant revenues section.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It's not under Housing?
MS. MEDEIROS: It's, it's under Housing, but it's under the grant revenue
portion of the budget. And this part you're looking at is actually the
County General Fund portion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for that information. So,
on, on your Housing Program, and I just want to touch briefly on this
because, you know, we talked a lot about it regarding the Hana affordable
housing. Your budget on Page 8-7 of the details shows the 50,000 for '08.
So, can you confirm to me that, that money will be utilized in its entirety
for the intended, intended use of that funds that we funded that for?
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay, well, the, the 50,000, I believe, that you're looking at is
actually for Hale Mahaolu home ownership housing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It says under Index Code 914115 on Page 8-

7 -MS. MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: -- Hale Mahaolu's study affordable housing,
Hana.
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay, that's the one, I, I had mentioned to your earlier that,
you know, we did, we did execute the contract.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
amount that it will be used?

And my question is, is it for the entire
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MS. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for that response. Mahalo,
Mr. Chainnan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chainnan. Madam Director,
thank you for that update on the Council initiatives, such as the Workforce
Housing policy, First Time Homebuyer's fund, and the Affordable
Housing fund. In, in particular, the First Time Homebuyer's, glad to
finally hear some things are starting to move at least from the Corp
Counsel's office, and I'm hopeful that you will bring this matter as soon as
possible after the budget session is over. I believe it will go into Mr.
Mateo's Committee and what Member Baisa said was a real eye opener,
you know, you have 300 families or folks waiting to take use or take
advantage of this program, which is a loan program, so they're going to
have to pay the County back. So, it's not like a grant where thcy just get it
for free. But it's one thing to have all the affordable housing out there, but
we got to find ways to get our people into them as well.
Now, again, on the requested expansion, so because of these initiatives
you have one, two, three, four, currently four housing specialists. This is
to, I guess, relieve the work load of these four housing specialists who are
working on these various initiatives in tenns of tracking these matters.
And you're requesting two, a Housing Specialist I and a Housing
Specialist III. Why, why two? Can you just give further explanation why,
why two, rather than just one and why these particular, I guess, levels,
entry levels?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, first of all, one of the program specialist positions is
actually our home program coordinator and that person takes care only of
the home program, which is ... it takes a lot of time, the Federal
regulations, it's monitoring, it's, so, if you take that person out then you
have who's ever left. We have another program specialist who oversees
our fair housing. So, if there's any complaints that come in they have to
go and do an inspection and, and provide a report to us. What we also
have that person doing is that person is also monitoring a lot of the old
County housing developments, which I was very surprised to find out that
we still have to monitor, like Skill Village. There's still components of it
that we're, we're con ... , continue to have to monitor. There's a lot of old
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programs. The County owns Komo Hano Hale apartments in Lahaina,
which is the only rental units that the County owns. We have to monitor
the management company for that. We have a lot of as ... and we've just
basically been educated about this from planning in any previous
developments that, again, other than affordable housing agreements, or if
there were any Conditions of Zoning, we are now being responsible to
monitor those with respect to housing.
So, if somebody wants to do a day care in a subdivision that had a
Condition of Zoning that allowed for residential use, we're now being
responsible to monitor. It takes quite a bit of time. The reviews of the
building permit application, the reviews of the preliminary subdivision
approval takes quite a bit of time. The planning reviews, which is the
Land Use reviews. Right now, we are behind. I have about three dozen of
them sitting on my desk because they re ... , require an intensive amount of
review in a lot of different areas to make sure that we're saying the right in
terms of housing. Do we support this? Is there, is there an impact on
Chapter 2.96? Is there an impact on any other housing related ordinance
or, or law that, that we have to review?
Again, part of the challenges that we're finding is that we have staff right
now who's not doing any of these new mandates. And it's not because
they can't do, it's because they've got so much other stuff going on that
where do, where do we put it. And what will likely happen if we do not
get the expansion positions that burden will fall upon the Housing
Division Administrator and the Assistant Housing Administrator and they
will bogged down with doing work that should, should be done at a lower
level. Their job should be at a higher level to review the division and
make sure the division is operating in, in the right perspective.
One of the challenges that we had and, and this is no knock to the previous
Housing Administrator, I love him dearly, but he took a lot of that load on
his shoulders, and that poor man worked till ten 0' clock almost every
single night. And that did not help him in terms of his health and that did
not help the department and the division in terms of spreading out that
work, so that we have more people and better coverage in terms of what's
going on. And being able to know and understand, again, institutional
knowledge ten years from now, if these people all retire, and we have to
start from scratch, we're going to be in really, really bad shape in terms of
monitoring projects and developments.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you for that explanation, and I can
appreciate the issue of transition from, you know, seasoned personnel
retiring and sort of passing the baton to the incoming people. And I
certainly don't want to see anybody's health getting affected with our
work, excessive work load. So, again, you know, I apologize for having to
really closely scrutinize any expansion but, you know, we have to on our
part justifY it to the tax payer in these austere times the need for expansion
of a County government. So, I, I want to make sure that the public knows
why and that with the hope that it will, you know, make not only your
department but other department's who are requesting expansion much
more efficient so at least the tax payer get something back for their
expense. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and Director, if you can provide us
with something in writing indicating, you know, the responsibilities for the
three expansion positions that you are requesting, the Accountant IV,
Housing Program Specialist I and the III. Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. While we can appreciate the
Director's concern for ten years down the road. I really don't care about
ten years down the road. I care about what's happening today. I think one
of the things that would help us, Chairman, is I don't appreciate
departments once we get the budget submittal come and tell us all of this
reassignments, transfers, or re-descriptions. Put it in the damn budget
proposal. What they send to us should be what they want or what they
need. And don't come and tell me change this, change this, change this
now.
You know, I'm like the other Members, I don't see why grant revenues
cannot pay for the expansions. I do not feel it's been justified that general
funds need to be used for these positions, Chairman, 'cause if those grant
revenues dry up, a lot of those programs will be eliminated, and I don't
need for us to take on more General Fund EP counts than necessary. If
Section 8 is gone, all those Section 8 employees are gone too. Not we're
going to subsidize it and hold them on our payroll. Chairman, my
understanding of your directive is that anything within any division that
has grant request funding will be done tomorrow, not today.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and we are currently on the Housing Division,
Mr. Chairman?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Except for the grant revenue ... we'll review the grant
revenues today.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and you plan to go through grant management
after this?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're going to go into the Human Concerns Program,
which is the largest program for the department. And then we're gonna go
to the Humane Society's Program after the Human Concerns Program, and
then soon after the Humane Society's Program, we, we'll go into the grant
revenues.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chairman, I'll, I wait for my opportunity under
Human Concerns Grant Management. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, if, the Chair is looking at the
time. We'll take our mid-afternoon recess and we'll reconvene at 2:45.
Members, we're going to go till 3:30 because we need to prepare for this
evening's meeting at 6:30, our public hearing, here in this chambers. So,
this meeting is in recess until 2:45 ... . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:33 p.m.
2:53 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.. (gavel) . .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, we going to go into the Human
Concerns Program. At this time, I'd like to call on the Director.
MS. MEDEIROS: Thank you. In the Human Concerns Program as, as you can
see from our, our overview. Again, we took a hard look at our Operations.
You can see that we, we reduced our Operations by approximately 5.2
percent and overall we reduced our overall budget 3.2 percent.
In the, the changes and, and, and increases of, of note. Again, the rentals
for One Main Plaza, which is applied to Immigrant Services, which is
applied to our Office on Aging, applied to the one that's missing, which
Director Pablo presented earlier was for Grants Management. It was an,
an oversight in that, and rentals for, I'm sorry, Volunteer Center. So, so
those are all related to, to rentals.
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In terms of Early Childhood Program that's relating to Grant Subsidy
Program, which is an increase and, I believe, the, let's see here, the only
other major increase is, is in our Senior Services Division under Maui
Senior Center Leisure for repairs and maintenance of buildings. The
request for 31,000 is primarily for painting of a building that has not been
painted for seven years and expected increases in electricity costs.
Other than that in equipment, basically we have leases for copiers in our
Grants Management, Office on Aging Division. We have a request for
computer software. It's listed under Acculturation Program and, and
really that was intended to be listed under our Immigrant Services
Program. And that's for a prior expanded position. So, we already have a
position but there was no funding for the computer and software program
for that individual.
Under. .. for motor vehicles there's a request under Office on Aging for a
motor vehicle, as well as for our Senior Services Division. And other than
that, we have a request for equipment for our Senior Services Division,
kitchen equipment, and this has to do with the proposed renovations to the
existing, I, I should say may be the old cafeteria and this is to renovate the
equipment there, which I believe has not been renovated for at least ten
years. More than ten years? Okay, more than ten years. That's my
presentation, thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. The equipment, the last one that you
mentioned is for Kaunoa, right? Yep, okay, fine. Member Mateo,
questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I guess, I'll,
you know, I've, I really don't have that many questions with this particular
section of the budget. I've had the opportunity of talking story with the
Deputy who has provided information on the programs that she's
administering. Perhaps if the deputy can more or less share with us the
impact of the 604,000 reduction from the Operations part of your budget
and what that represents in terms of the services that now must be adjusted
to address the reduction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you for your question, Mr. Mateo. The reduction in the
Operations is due largely to reduction in line, grant, grant line items for
Human Concerns.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, there's no actual impact because it's just that
the grant goes away, the program goes away, or the service goes away.
MS. TSUHAKO: Some of those grant line items were one shot deals for Capital
Improvement Projects. I know big totals last year for, I think, it was Boy
Scouts and -MS. MEDEIROS: YMCA.
MS. TSUHAKO: --YMCA.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MS. TSUHAKO: And so, those were reflected as a one time allocation.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Found on your program, 10-11, one
of the goals recognize has to do with the Youth Center grant agreements to
ensure that they are open, safe, secure, nurturing, etcetera. How often is
an actual physical assessment done on our Youth Centers?
MS. TSUHAKO: Usually the Youth Centers, I think, are visited by the grants
management specialists who work with the, the Youth Centers themselves.
I, I'll guess to say how often they go out. I would say at least yearly,
probably more frequently.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, but, and the only reason I ask because as
we travel through some districts, there were some districts who's Youth
Centers was in need of repair and maintenance situations. So, just to find
out who does an assessment or, you know, in the monitoring.... (end of
tape, start 4B). ..
MS. TSUHAKO: Right, the, the grants specialist would monitor the program,
programming in the Youth Centers, but the actual facilities themselves are
the responsibilities of Parks and Recreation. They're their facilities on
their properties.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, no, I understand that. But, I think,
someone ... part of the monitoring should be included in the safetiness and
the tear, you know, the safetiness of, you know, of the building because
that's where you're running your programs from. So, it can't only include
only your programs. Unfortunately, it has to be inclusive.
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Your Immigration Services Division, your break down, would you have a
break down by island as well as the group classification of the ethnic,
ethnic groups that are being serviced by the Immigration office because
there is a perception that we only service the Filipino community and that
is definitely not the case.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you for asking that in particular. Yes, we do have a
break down by site and we can provide that to you. It also breaks down
the ethnicity of the people that are being serviced to Immigrant Services.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: You know, with the existing number of
employees you have in, in this segment, the Immigration segment, they,
they average how many, is, is there an average case load that they carry?
MS. TSUHAKO: There's no case load but what Mr. Baxa, who's the, the
supervisor in that division, is trying to work on efficiency so that the
families who come in for help and maybe see one specialist could see the
same specialist again and again to maintain some continuity. But because
of the staffing levels that's not always able to occur. But we, we are
working with him to try and look at efficiencies within the operations of
his division.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And, and, Deputy, can you just give us
an update on that Molokai position out of the FY '08 budget?
Whether. .. can you give us a status on that?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, I'd be happy to. The ... that is a half time clerk typist
position and it went out for recruitment and I believe there was one
candidate selected. But that candidate was working a full time job already
and could not make accommodations in his schedule to allow him to work
in our Immigrant Services office. So, the position went out to recruitment
again and we've begun interviewing to fill that position.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And under your 2009 budget items, you list for
equipment three particular entries. One is for the vehicle, 25,000; the
other for a vehicle, 20,000, for the Early [sic] Lunch Program; and 8,000
for the Senior Center Leisure Program. Was that what was referenced as a
need for painting and maintenance of the facility for 8,000?
MS. TSUHAKO: That is, actually that $8,000 for, was for the kitchen equipment.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Kitchen equipment?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. And lastly, Deputy Director,
the list of 57.5 personnel. Can you identify the vacant ones? And the only
reason I'm asking is because the list that we have gotten from Personnel as
of March 31 st apparently does not coincide with an actual.
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, I can see in our housing, excuse me in our Human
Concerns Program, let me see, one, two, three. Seven, seven, right? Yes,
seven positions that we got. .. we have on our list that are unfilled and I can
give you a status of, of them if you would like.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, let me just ask you certain .. J got three in
particular that I wanted you to comment on. One was the Grants
Management Operations Assistant. Is that, yeah? This is, I guess, vacant
since July '07, and there is no request to fill. Next to that in terms of a
comment, is that a wrong indication?
MS. TSUHAKO: The current situation is that we are waiting for the current clerk
typist to meet the minimum qualifications for that position and to move
that person into that position.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So.
MS. TSUHAKO: After those qualifications are met.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, you going then have another vacancy for that
clerk typist?
MS. TSUHAKO: For the vacated position, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And that, that position is one that you already
won't have to wait another year to fill?
MS. TSUHAKO: I'm hoping not.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The other position, Deputy, is Senior Services
Program Assistant II, and once again, no request to fill. Could you
comment on that position?
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MS. TSUHAKO: That's, that's a position that the Director talked about was
years ago moved to Housing. And so, what we are in the process of doing
right now is to re-describe that position and reallocate it. And actually the
re-description, the proposed re-description, has already been done, and,
and I believe forwarded to DPS for their review.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and the last one is the Senior Services
Program Assistant I. No request to fill.
MS. TSUHAKO: The request to fill was submitted on the 24th of March on that
position.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Twenty-fourth of March?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yeah, I think, after, after this, the DPS list was, was generated.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, okay. Thank you very much. So, you're,
you're, you're virtually pretty well staffed at this particular point and
time?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, I would say we're doing pretty well.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And thank you for continuing to provide the
information.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, just for your information,
tomorrow we're going to cover the Department of Housing ad Human
Concerns grants. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'll wait until that time, thank you. Those are
where my questions are. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I, I too. I had questions in that
area. So, I'll wait until then.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. No questions at this
time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. One quiek question just on
equipment. I know you have for the Office of Aging, motor vehicle,
25,000, and Elderly Lunch Program, motor vehicle replacement, 20. Why,
why the differentiation in price? I mean, are we looking at a bigger
vehicle for Office of Aging. And I know, I guess, the lunch program you
have that, that's a vehicle for Meals on Wheels? You use what a station
wagon, I guess, for that?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes. In terms of Office on Aging, they have been requesting
for some time, basically a four-by-four vehicle, and this for, and this is not
a big four-by-four again. Basically, this is for their, their information and
outreach staff. And they go to homes of the elderly and there are some
situations where elderly lives in rural or outskirt areas that you don't have
regular County roads. And they've had problems in the past, especially
during the rainy season, when roads would washed out or there's ruts in
the road that they cannot take a regular vehicle. And if that's the case,
then the elderly person cannot get served. So, they are ... have been
requesting a four-by-four vehicle for that purpose.
In terms of... can I have that? In terms of the Senior Services Division, it
is for the Meals on Wheels Program. The existing vehicle has over 75,000
miles on its odometer. It has been constantly in and out of the garage
since 2005, and, I guess, is, is incurring regular transmission and engine
problems. So, this is a request to replace the vehicle so that they can
continue with their services.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Hopefully, we find something that's
much better maintenance wise, yeah. Okay. Thank you. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you tell us this afternoon your approach with the
grant management component? It was originally set up to reduce the need
of Council to go through line item considerations and yet it, it's going the
wrong way. We get more line item requests than ever before. So, it's,
comes to a point where the question is does grants management still serve
it's purpose? And if it does, what would you ask of us to reduce? The
time it takes for us to go through all the individual grants, since it takes
more of our scheduling requirements and then we have to address and
maybe not give some departments even their initial review.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MS. MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you. I'll respond. In terms of our Grants
Management Division, again, on the annual basis, the Grants Management
Division monitors and services over 125 grants. This is .. .includes not only
the line items that you see but there are pots of monies. For instance,
homeless programs, substance abuse programs. As you are well aware,
the community partnership grants, cultural and arts, youth programs, and
youth center grants are reviewed by the Grants Review Committee. So,
these are pots of monies. They're reviewed by a secondary review
committee and recommendations are made to the Mayor. And based on
their recommendations and acceptance of the Mayor, our Grants
Management Division then contracts with the, the agencies.
The, the very quick, and I suppose simple answer to your, your question is
if Council does not want to review specific line items then there's a
possibility of whether or not you want to create pots of monies for those
specific categories. And then, of course, the, the department or Tri-Grants
Division would either RFP or they would create again a review committee
to review applications and to make funding recommendations.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you currently have a review committee, Director?
MS. MEDEIROS: Well, again, the Grants Review Committee currently reviews
only the funding for community partnership grants, culture and arts, youth
programs, and youth centers.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, and I'm talking about those requests
outside of the CP pot, whether it be like this Housing and Land Enterprise
Maui, 150,000. Is those things go through it like a maybe not the Grants
Review Committee but goes through another review process so that it
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becomes part of a budget, budget consideration or, or that, that's not how
it goes?
MS.

: Well, again, basically line items you
a
specific
then we
to work with
organization
specific purpose.
again, your, your other option
sometimes you
have organizations
you want to assist.
as an
last year you had
YMCA, I believe, had a
campaIgn.
HOKAMA: Right.

MS. MEDEIROS: And the Boy, Boy Scouts, I think, had something they had to
fix at their, at the, at their camp. So, again, these are sometimes required
because you want to help out an organization for a very specific purpose.
Certainly, one of the concerns may be in terms of line items that are
funded year after year and year, and you may have a concern as to are, are
they being monitored? Well, they are being monitored by our, our Grants
Management Division. The question may be is ... are they looked at on an
annual basis to determine whether they should receive continued funding
or not? And under the current Administration, we actually have begun
this process. So, it's not necessarily a guarantee that just because you got
funding last year that you're going automatically get it next year. So,
there is at least a process that we're trying to institute for that purpose.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
recommended that approach.

Mayor Tavares had in ... has in the past
just set up pots of subject matter funds,
it go out
to

additional monies in the pot. Part of the process, however, is while they
have said so verbally they have never provided a justification as to why
they feel more monies should be provided. And we're going to be
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working with them in terms of timing when we prepare our budget and
when they should be providing that information to us.
We're
attempting to work with the GRC
terms
understanding
roles and, and
they're supposed to be doing. We are working
on
to
Legislation, Chapter 3.36, regarding grants program
because over time
has happened is a lot of the work that's listed
that chapter is actually being done by our Grants Division and is no
longer being done by
Grants
Committee. So, we're
again an overall picture and some of these efficiencies wherever we can
achieve them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I, I am happy to hear those comments from
you, Director. You know, in this general area, department, you have a lot
of Clerk Typist III. One of the things we had hoped for would be HR
Payroll Initiative that we supported and we know is ... will be undergoing
adjustments was for reduce the need of Clerk Typist Ill's. So, has the HR
Payroll Program assisted your departments in, in particular with reducing
the need of, of those positions, and what those positions in the past were
required to perform regarding HR?
MS. MEDEIROS: We have not had any discussions with DPS with respect to
this and I'm not aware of, of that process.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. That, that's a fair candid response back to the
question. It is something that Mr. Pablo I would ask if you would notify
the ... all, all the departments that, that is
to

quick one.
on
one is the Lanai position?

Services,

MS. TSUHAKO: Hang on one second, please.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. MEDEIROS: 8-9.

SR 1

TSUHAKO:

one
I

Or

MS. TSUHAKO: Actually, you know what, I

it was

it's the other one.

MS. MEDEIROS: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you -MS. TSUHAKO: Okay. I'll check on that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --check on that and respond.
MS. TSUHAKO: 'Cause we did have somebody in that position.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MS. TSUHAKO: And she transferred to a different -HOKAMA:

MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. You want me to ask the question? Are you going to
review the Animal Management Program? Or, you're going to do that
separately.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll, we'll take the Animal Management Program,
once we complete this thing here, after grant revenues.
MS.

Okay.
I

gotten

MEDEIROS: Okay,
terms
grant revenues
as a
sort of overall overview of
Two significant things.
department
continues to seek out grant revenues wherever we can for programmatic
purposes. Our Budget Director did a great analysis and the Human
Concerns Department brings in the largest amount of grant revenues into
the County, far surpassing any other departments. And we basically went
from in 2004, 28 grant revenue items to 49 in Fiscal Year '08,
representing more than $10 million. For our grant revenue what we
showed here is a decrease in EP count and that was the result of, if you
recall last year, we had requested that three positions from our Office on
Aging be transferred to County General Fund. At the same time, we're
also expecting some increases in various programs and some additional
new line items.
In terms of our Housing Program, we basically show approximately 8
percent, 8.7 percent increase, and that's due primarily to the Section 8
program.
Investment Partnership Program and

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions to the Housing Program?
Seeing none, continuing on.
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MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. I just wanted to add and our Dir. .. , Budget Director
Pablo will provide you with infonnation. On a new add ... this was again
erroneous ommitence there's an additional potential pot of revenue monies
regarding our Section 8 Family Self Sufficiency Program that we
recelvmg
State, Hawaii Public Housing Authority,
amount
approximately $75,000. So, this would be an..
addition to what's
listed
budget
we
to at least
this
to
attention.
our Human Concerns Program, overall, overall increase is
approximately 13.7 percent. Again, we're looking at increases in salaries
and wages based on across the board increases, but also in operations and
these are due to, oh great, I copied the wrong thing to the wrong place.
Don't we just love computers. Basically, it's due to potential increases in,
in current grant revenues.
We also have two potentially new items that I just wanted to bring to your
attention. One, one of it is currently listed on Page 8-35, refers to the Title
V Incentive Grants for Local Delinquency Prevention Programs. We had
zeroed that out in Fiscal Year 2009 because, at the time we were preparing
our budgets, we were told that we were not going to receive money, and
just recently we had received word that there is a potential that we may
receive some funding. And so, we ask for your indulgence in, in accepting
that.
school suspension program at Kalama

regards to our, our Molokai offices. And we were ''''''fur,,,,
tenns of our department originally. Our Senior Services Division offices
are currently housed in a trailer located next to the County Service Center

- 89-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 10, 2008

and the trailer leaks profusely every time it rains and is presenting a very
unsafe working condition.
So, one
our questions, of course, is what do we do and what are our
options looking forward? Our
for our division, our, our
close by or near proximity. We
is to hopefully have our program
had been discussing the possibility with USDARD, and they actually
presented this information to us, of the possibility of applying for a
community facilities grant
allow us to do a, a space needs
on Molokai, and to determine what we need, what our options are, and
what, where we can look at over the next ten years in terms of office
space. Now, we are aware that the, the Fire Station at Kaunakakai is
going to be moving to a different location. But that site may not, mayor
may not be a good site for our offices because I understand it, it floods.
So, the idea and concept, if we are lucky enough to, to receive this grant,
is again to provide us with a study to let us know what we can do and what
our options are for our department.
Currently, we provide services through our Immigrant Services, Senior
Services Division, and Office on Aging on Molokai. And that's all I have.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Director, you know, for those possible
grants that you think that we could probably get, if you could provide us a
list of those so that, so that we can include it in the Fiscal '09 Budget.
Members, any questions to Human Concerns Program? Member Baisa?

Okay,
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan, thank you. Director, Deputy, we thank
you. Title III, under Human Concerns, specifically addresses what
Federal program, please?
MS. TSUHAKO:

HOKAMA: Okay. So,
okay,
a Molokai
Assisted
position.
sorry. I thought it was the Lanai
Transportation programs, department, this, this grant revenue
you
have for that helps take care six employees, this comes from the Federal
government this grant amount?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes, I believe, the Assisted Transportation program is funded
through, through Office on Aging funds that are granted to Kaunoa to
provide that service.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I'm assuming this works in conjunction with
Department of Transportation's funds that we give for specialized
transportation or there is no relationship whatsoever with that program or
operation?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don't believe that there's a relationship between those two
programs, particularly Assisted Transportation is where the transport
request is made by families or by the actual elders themselves who need a
ride to the doctor or and they don't have any other means to transport them
and they need personal care assistance to get to those places.

MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And in, in the department's view this is not, no
duplication of service?
MS. TSUHAKO: You know, I can't honestly
you
what type
patients ... (end of tape, start 5A) . ..
mind answering that question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
MS. TSUHAKO:
here.

I know specifically

you corne forward, please?

you corne to

podium, please? Or, you can corne

MS. MUROMOTO: I'm Leola Muromoto, the assistant administrator for Kaunoa
Senior Services.
The seniors that are served through assisted
transportation are the frail and homebound. They are assessed and
determined that there's no way that they can get to and from their homes
to a medical facility.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, bed ridden, wheelchair bound residents?
MS. MUROMOTO: Not bed ridden and not nursing horne.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Help us understand that qualification comment you
made about who, who is able to receive this type of assisted service.
MS. MUROMOTO: Through the Kupuna program that's administered or
handled through the Office on Aging, an assessment is conducted and
oel:ennUlanlon based on
care they

"n{~rHlnr,,'1

MS. MUROMOTO: Correct.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And it only can be used for older Americans.
So, if a very young person that would, would not qualify to have this
service for them?
MS. MUROMOTO: No,
60.

the assisted

Older

must have a

HHUHUM',U

service?
MS. MUROMOTO: With the assessment, they would determine what the
ailments would be, what the limitations for that individual would be.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's done by your team or, or is it also done by a
physician?
MS. MUROMOTO: It would, if it's, if it's required. If a medical evaluation is
required then the Office on Aging would request that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Have you ever had a need to have MEO assist
you in, in transporting an individual because the physical situation has
changed whereby from maybe a wheelchair they need to have a stretcher
requirement for trans ... , transportation needs? Have you had, had to
utilize MEO's assistance to help you do this?
MS. MUROMOTO: I

a

<.UHV .... H .

us
an amount anyway?

MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you, Chair Hokama. I'll try to answer your question.
I'm not really well. .. extremely well versed in this but I know that the, the
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funding that's reflected in the budget, grant revenue funding that was
reflected in the budget before was there because of an expectation that
TANF funds would be granted out to the Counties. This is, I think, two or
three years ago.
funding never carne through and I
Legislature right now is dealing with
question of using some of
TANF funds to supplement housing costs for poor people
there's a
of those TANF
should be saved as a reserve
debate about how
for actual people or a expected growing number
people who might
apply
welfare benefits. And so, my understanding,
Statewide
meetings with homeless coalition folks is that we don't expect, none of the
Counties expect to get T ANF funds given to us necessarily for a purpose,
until Legislature decides how much they want to have in their surplus,
their, their savings budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The State Legislature?
MS. TSUHAKO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, in the meantime, our County needy families will
have to suffer and wait because the Legislature cannot make up their mind
regarding this reserve fund. Is that, is that the bot. .. , is that straight to the
face -MS. TSUHAKO: It seems like it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --picture of, ofthis situation?

to address and
What can I say, Chairman? Again, we
to
leader. .. , the lack of leadership at the State level. Okay, Chairman, thank
you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, did you guys have any more
questions in regards to the grants revenue? Please forward it to the Chair
for a response from the department. Members, also, I know time is
runmlfLg short
we still got the
Management to cover.
for
Building Renovation.
I right, Director?
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes, correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I think we touched base on that. And the other one
is a Lanai, Lanai Senior Center facility. Maybe if you can quickly go over
that one.
MS. MEDEIROS: Yes, thank you. Well funding for this started last year in
terms of design. And if you will recall, last year, originally there was
some discussion about renovating the facility and then it was changed to
rather than renovating to demolish and build a new one. Currently, the
designs are underway and we anticipate, completion of these designs, I
believe, by October. And so, this money is requesting the monies to
actually construct the facility.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
regarding this?

Thank you.

Mr. Hokama, you got any comments

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding
this facility for Lanai? Seeing none, that concludes the CIP portion. And,
and, Director, we'll go directly into the Animal Management Program.
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MS. MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay, we'll make this fast, as soon as I can find it. In
the Animal Management Program as, as I'm sure you're all aware, the
program is contracted out to the Maui Humane Society. And there ... the
Society has provided a request for an increase
budget
amount of $70,000. We have the executive director of the Maui
.u.,-,u"....... v Society here and I
ask
indulgence
referring
questions
allowing
an opening statement
respect to
request.
........ u ...... '"

PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Bouchard. Over
on the hot seat.

is okay. Put you

MS. BOUCHARD: I know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. BOUCHARD: Okay, good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla, Council Members.
I'm Jocelyn Bouchard, CEO, of the Maui Humane Society. So, we thank
Mayor Tavares for including the increase in her budget this year. And
actually, we had requested a little more than, than what is in the budget,
but we appreciate the, the tight nature of funds this year. So, we are
simply asking that you support what is in ... what she has placed in the
budget.
And this is primarily to cover staffing increases. Additional funding that
we had sought, we will be seeking
the revolving or

you. Members,
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And the three,
the, the 3 percent is increase in employee wages?
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MS. BOUCHARD: Actually this year, we are asking for more than the 3 percent
cap. What we, we have not for five years adjusted salary ranges and so
staff have been capped at a maximum of a 3 percent in terms of just a
performance related increase
the past years. So, it varies among
you that I, I, I budget out
department
department. And I will
depending on their actual duties. So,
other words, where as
control is 100 percent billed to the County because their duties are 100
percent related to our contractual obligations with
County.
departments, like customer service and even animal care and veterinary,
have varying levels from 70 to 15 percent that we bill to the County. So,
it's kind of complicated in terms of a specific percentages that we're
asking 'cause we're also asking for different increases for the different
positions.
UnJeHU...

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
positions?

So, you, you mentioned you had 40 to 42

MS. BOUCHARD: We have currently 42 positions.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Forty-two positions?
MS. BOUCHARD: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, all, all of your positions are now full?
MS.

Actually, we

one vacant position

an

publishes a nationwide study that has relevant
they
things
adoption counselors and animal control officers. And so, we can compare
from a nationwide basis and they're broken down by size of budget,
constituents served, and things like that. So, we can get a really good snap
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shot of comparison as to what the salary ranges are across the, the nation.
And some of our positions are seriously out of whack, so.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Could

provide us with

MS.
COUNCILMEMBER
management section.
you, you payout?

wage

IS

MS. BOUCHARD: I would say that, you know, the, the tum over has been in the
more of the entry level positions, like animal care that get about $9 an
hour.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And McDonald's pays ten?
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And I also wanted to commend you for
the additional services you're providing Molokai, because we do put a
proviso on your budget and part of that money services our community.
And we have had a discussion that you start considering including
Molokai's operation in, in your budget. So, we're going to continue that
dialogue and perhaps FY '10, we'll be able to be singing the same song,
yeah.

Thank you,

MS.

an

you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I also want to thank you, Jocelyn, for working
too with the youth centers and also trying to address some of the other
problems with the dangerous animals and also our domestic violence
issues because I think it's really important. So, I do
you
a
stable work force and since it's been a while and I know you've had some
other challenges too and usually
an economic down tum that's
you need the money because you will not probably get some
donations that you have counted on
past. So, I
budget.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Bouchard,
thank you for your overview. On the spay neuter program-MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --$67,000. Do you do that program at your
facilities or you contract it out?
MS. BOUCHARD: Actually, only 40,000 of that comes to us specifically here at
the, at the Humane Society. Some of that is also for Molokai. And,
we ... those, that specific pot of funding, we did last year, for example, we
did about 4,600 spays and neuters and about 750 of them were from this

MS.

about 750.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MS. BOUCHARD: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Now, in considering other, other
jurisdictions throughout the nation, do most jurisdictions,
government funds
Societies, or is
some differences
"t"tpY'pnt jurisdictions?
MS.

jurisdictions
large, I
and, and
not,
not stating
based
fact but my impression is that more and more governmental agencies
it
county, city, or townships, you know, are contracting with their local
animal welfare agency versus trying to provide the service themselves.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see, okay, thank you for the information
you have provided and, you know, thank you for the work that you
continue to do.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to echo the
sentiments of my other colleagues to express my thank yous for your
efforts. And this is a, a real needed service in the community and as we
get more people coming to our County well you can sort of connect

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Did you submit to the Budget office what kind of
revenues that the program is generating either through impound fees, or,
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or cat trap deposits, or dog tags, or other programs that you charge an
amount for the service?
MS.

The,
programs
we charge
come
to
County go into
Animal Management fund, so
is very specifically
tracked. Other
you
we receive are not
I
not
figures. I
of
correct me
getting out of
question,
we
about 55 percent of our funding from
County.
So, the other 45 percent comes from earned income ventures. For
example, cremations, which is not part of our contract but brings in a
significant amount of funding, grant income, and various fundraising
activities.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I just need to be able to, be able to understand the
big financial picture of your agency, and then to have a confidence to give
you a million plus dollars, $1.5 million of General Fund appropriations.
And so, I, I would consider that something that you should provide
annually to the Budget office.
MS. BOUCHARD: I did provide Chair Pontanilla with our audit and our annual
budget when I met with him. So, and at the office of Housing and Human
Concerns also receives our audit every year along with our budgets and,
and that sort of information too.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, anything that the County has an amount for under
our rates and fees program, you can ten us this afternoon what it generates
IS a peJrCenulge

MS. BOUCHARD: I, I can comment on that. I, I can tell you that since several
about four or five years back, we instituted a software program and sent
out reminders. So, we are finding that our licenses are slightly up, our dog
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licenses. However, we ... there is a lot of room for improvement. We
know that there's more dogs out there than are being licensed and part of
the problem is we're the only place to come get the licenses. So, we
talked, we talked about possibly extending that to veterinary clinics or
stores, so people could purchase licenses elsewhere. Also,
me
personally, the
dog licenses are, are something
I
always
supported. A wider gap between those and, and the what would be
none intact or the spayed or neutered animals because by and large
with our
control efforts, be it loose dogs, certainly dangerous dogs,
the majority of those offending dogs are intact and, and animals. So,
they're the ones having the litters and things like that. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and then if you have additional things you
could share with us whether it be cats or any, any other areas, we, we
would appreciate those, those comments.
MS. BOUCHARD: Feral, feral cats remain a huge problem in Maui County and
nationwide. What we are looking at here, not just in Hawaii, but also
Arizona, California, New Mexico, some of the warmer regions is the
neighborhood cat. And recently, we just finished feline fix month in
February when we received two significant donations and did about 330
spay neuters aimed at that neighborhood cat. That's the one that
everybody feeds but nobody owns. And we're kind of looking at that cat
as the gateway cat, if you will, to, I know, to the feral cat population. In
our every ongoing attempts to control that population. It is ... people ask
me what the number one problem in Maui is and I would have to say feral
cats.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Ms. Bouchard,
on Molokai we have the dog warden.
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MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
people does
canng
show.
MS.

dog warden does
animals
except for

what
a one man

Yes.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Is his, his responsibilities
response and the care that would be line with your people?

terms

MS. BOUCHARD: Yes, except our officers do not do the majority of daily care
for the animals. That's what our animal care department does and, and so
they spend more time on the road, I would assume. Of course, we have
more animals too. But, yes, in terms of the enforcement and the law
enforcement activity that is very much on par with what out officers do.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And the other day, he was here.
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: He was here with, with you. So, you apparently
relate with the operation on Molokai more directly than say, the Police
Department?
MS. BOUCHARD: Absolutely.

efforts to do that. My understanding is that they were looking at getting a
new position in the, I believe, the Department of Ag would fall under there
to actually be responsible for the trapping and, and sort of collection of the
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chickens and then we would support with the cremation servIces and
disposal.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Okay, yeah, because talking to our
I, I, think for them even
counterparts on Kauai, it's a huge problem.
more so because they don't have the mongoose, so it doesn't
population
any way. But, we want to do something before we get to
that
So,
glad you're aware of it and the Mayor's also trying to
direction.
many calls do you get right now
fowls?
MS. BOUCHARD: It, it's difficult to say. I can tell you that our, our number of
other animals, which is anything not a cat or a dog has sky rocketed over
the past year or two because of, of people bringing in feral chickens. I
don't really have an accurate number for you. But I also talked to my
counterpart in Kauai and 'cause they've actually developed a special trap
over there, but what they are finding is that people and same thing with
feral cats, people won't actually get out there and trap them so that's,
that's part of the problem.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and once you collect them,
however you collect them, what happens to that, the animals then? Are
they treated like cats and dogs?
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

Ms.

l\l'larlagement area.
very
Also thank you to Administration,
Deputy Fujita Villarosa, and Committee Staff people.
r>.UHU.[.U
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Members, tomorrow morning, you know, we'll continue on with the
grants review. The first department up in the morning would be the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns, followed by the Mayor's
office, which is OED, and hopefully we can complete as many as we can
morning,
we'll continue on the afternoon taking on
Transportation, Planning, Water Supply, and Environmental Management
departments. So, with that, Members, we do
a
at 6:30,
public hearing.
is now adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..
pending

ADJOURN:

discussion.

4:03 p.m.

APPROVED:

ONTANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min:080410

Transcribed by: Delfey Fernandez

- 105 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

April 10, 2008

CERTIFICATE

I, Delfey
a true

certify

correct traJlscnm

foregoing rf'r\rf'~~f'nt" to
am not

proceedings. I

cause.
this 6th day of May 2008,

- 106 -

Hawaii

